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Honourable Nick Griffiths, MLC
President of the Legisiative Council

Honourable Grant Waoodhams, MLA
Speaker of the Legislative Assembly

Annual Report of the Parliamentary Commissioner for Administrative
Investigations for the year ended 30 June 2008

In accordance with seclion 61(1} of the Financial Managemant Acl 2008, 1 hereby
submit to Parliament the report of the Parliamentary Commissioner for Administrative
Investigations for the financial year ended 30 June 2608,

The report has baen prepared in accordance with the Financia! Managemeni Act
2006 and section 27 of the Parliamentary Commissioner Act 1971,

Chris Field
Waestern Australian Ombudsman

26 September 2008
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Who is the Ombudsman?

The Ombudsman is an independent officer of Pariiament with responsibility lo investigate the
actions of State Government departiments, prisons, hospilals, schools and technical colleges, local
governments and public universities,

What is the need for an Ombudsman?

The creation of the office of the Ombudsman recognised both the growing power of public
auihorities to affect people's daily lives and the need for these agencies to be accountable for this
power ds well as the desirability of creating a body Lhat provides timely, accessible and low cost
means for peopie o resolve their disputes with these agencies.

What does the Ombudsman do?

The Ombudsman has two principal funclions. First, the Ombudsman investigaies complaints from
the public about public administration.  Second, to improve, over lime, the slandard of public
administration. In 2007-08, over 5,000 people sontasted the Ombudsman's office. The majority of
concerns raised with the office are dealt with informally. n 2007-08, the office dealt with 1,119
formal compiaints for investigation. The Ombudsman always observes an independent and
impartial approach to the conduct of investigations as well as observing procedural faimess at all
times. lsformation oblained by the Ombudsman in an investigation is confidential.

At the conclusion of an investigation, the Ombudsman may make formal recommendations,
including to:

o refer the matter to another agency,

o rectify administrative actions;

o vary administrative practice;

o reconsider the law which underping administrative action; or
v give reasons for & decision.

The Ombudsman places a strong emphasis on making practical recommendations about materially
significani malters. The Ombudsman does not make recommendations unless it is considered that
they will be beneficial {o the public, In additon to this, however, the Ombudsman also considers
whether recommendations made as a result of an investigation will have costs for agencies, both
direct costs, including implemertalion and compliance costs, as well as opperiunity costs, Put
another way, the Ombudsman seeks to make recommendations thal have a net beneficial
outcome for the Western Australian public. Where the Ombudsman is not sufficiently clear about
the cost and benefit of a given recommendation, the Ombudsman will seek the advice of the
agency and possible exiernal advice,
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It gives me great pleasure to present my second report as Western |
Australian Ombudsman,

in this country, and in many modern democracies around the world,
the Ombudsman has become recognised as a key accountabilily
agency - working to promole a range of crilical safeguards on the
interaction of government and its citizens. The Western Australian
Ombutsman is equally committed to this work. To do so, we
undertake a range of activities, including education and liaisan with
public administrators, investigalions arising from complaints made o
us, investigations of our own motion and participation in other activities
designed to improve the administration of public services.

The twelve month period covered in this annual report has been one of very significant activity in
this office. We have undertaken a major organisational review, followad by an organisationa!
restructure. A key focus of the restructure has been on ensuring that we are best placed o rasoive
concerns that are raised with us in the most
efficient, imely and effective way possible. We
have created three teams in the office - a
Complaint Resolution Team, an Administrative
Improvements Team and a Strategic Services
Team. The Complaint Resolution Team is split
into two sub-teams, the Access and Resolution
Team, designed to handle the bulk of the
matters raised with my office in a highly cost-
i e o : effective and timely way, and the Investigations
and Resoluluon 'i’eam S|mEIarIy de&gned to be focused on resclving concerns, but dedicated to
deaiing with more complex investigations. Our Adminisirative Irmpravements Team places a new
focus on a critical area of our work - improving the quality of public administration. Finally, our
Corporate Slrategic Services Team brings fogether and builds our research, major prejects,
syslems, corporate services, human resources and communications work in a sirategic way.

Aligned with this restructure we have infroduced a range of new complaint handling processes 10
improve the timeliness and quality of our investigations as well as systems to improve our
identification of themes in our work that may require further investigation.

The benefits of this restruciure are already evident,
including the fact that the performance on each of -
our key efficiency indicators has improved, in some
cases dramatically, over the previous iwelve -
months.

There is siiil, however, much work {o be achieved in reducing the time taken to resolve complaints,
eliminating aged complaints, reducing the cost per complaint investigaled, increasing our
accessibility and awareness, parlicularly lo regional and indigenous Western Australians, and
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enhancing our contribution to administrative improvements and  accountability. These
achievements will be a key focus over the coming years.,

The achievements of the Ombudsman are the achievements of a dedicated team. | take this
opportunily to thank them for their professionalism and commitment, their betief in the importance
of their role, yet at the same time, their continued commitment to exercise thair powers with great
care and humility.

We are clear that Western Australian cilizens have cerlain expectations of us - resolving
complaints about public administration in a fair,
timely and effective manner, improving the
slandard by which public  administrators
discharge their responsibililies and ensuring that
government’s  activities  are  hallmarked by
integrity and accountability.

itis o greal privilege to occupy the position of Ombudsman and | look forward to working with my
team over the caming tweive months to continue to deliver on these expectations.

Chris Fleld
Western Australian Ombudsman
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Overview of the Ombudsman's Office

Executive Summary - Year's Achievemenis

Operational Sfrucivre

The Ombudsman’s office has two principal functions. First, the office investigates and resolves
complaints about public authorities. Cenlral to this is whether public authorities’ actions and
decisions have been fair and reasonable, and within the law. Second, the office aims to improve
public administration for the benefit of all Western Australians. In part, this occurs through the
recommendations for change to administrative practices that result from the investigation of
‘complaints. In addition, the office undertakes a range of other activities designed specifically to
improve the delivery of public services. They include education and kaison programs with public
authorities and major investfigations initisted by the Ombudsman into issues of concern lo
government and the community.

Complaint Investigotion and Resolution

« Over 5000 people contacted the
Ombudsman's office during the financial -
year. The majority of concerns raised @ i}
with the office were dealt with informally. : ...
The office dealt with 1,119 formal :
compiaints for investigation.

« Significantly reduced the average age of allegations on hand by 17 per cent.
» Significantly reduced the number of older cases on hand by approximately 20 per cent,

» Implementad a new case management system to further improve the management, efficiency,
timeliness and quality of investigations.

« Finalised a review of the office's Operations Manual for staff.

tnproved Public Adminisiration

» Eslablished an Administrative Improvement Team to enable & stronger and more sirategic
approach fo improving public administration at a sysiemic level,

» Finalised an own motion investigation reviewing the use by Indigenous prisoners of the
Department of Corrective Services' internal prisoner complaints process.

« Published the Progress Repart on the Implementation of the Ombudsman’s Recommendations
by the Department of Education

i B and Training, which identified a

34 Seergieinee bl ey number of systemic issues and

y : : contalned five recommendations.

100%
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Completed a project that tracked the implementation of recommendations and suggestions
made to public authorities over the last six years, The project findings showed thay had been
implemiented in 97 percent of cases.

Provided stralegic advice to the Department of Corrective Services and the Depariment for
Child Protection on the implementation of their new complaint handling systems.

Participated in the development of & fraining DVD produced by the Depariment for Child
Prolection 1o be used with stafl across Western Australia.

Conlinued to coniribute to the Depariment of Corrective Services' training program for prison
officers by providing awareness sessions 1o all new frainee prison officers about tha role of the
Ombudsman,

Visited Casuarina Prison and Rangeview Remand Centre in conjunction with the inspeclor of
Custodial Services to assess the effectiveness of the prisoner complaints process and
confidential maii systemt and met with peer support staff, prisoners and detainees to raise
awareness of the office.

Oiner inlliatives

>

Undertock 10 Inspeclions under telecommunications interceplion legislation 1o audit the
interception activities of the Western Australia Police and the Corruption and Crime
Commission,

Made significant progress to transfer the child death review jurisdiclion from a ministerial
advisary commitiee {o the Ombudsman follewing endorsement of recommendations by the
Slale Governmen! arising from an independent review of the former Depariment for
Communily Development i 2007, The transfer requires legislative change and legislative
drafting, which is well advanced.

Worked with the Department of Water on _
the proposed transfer of the waler service P o
customer complaints  funclion o the et cO18%
Ombudsman.  Legislative change will be R AL PP IS PR T
aAeated to enable the transfer o occur,

 54%

Strategic Partnerships

o

Continued to participate in the Integrity Coordinating Group, which comprises the Ombudsman,
Corruption and Crime Commissioner, Auditor General and Commissioner for Public Sector
Standards.

Partnered with the Commonweaith and New Soulh Wales Ombudsmen in an AusAlD funded
program to sirengthen the capacily of Ombudsman services in Indonesia.

Participated in a national project led by the New South Wales Ombudsman to develop better
strategies for dealing with complainants whose behaviour is challenging.

Poge B
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Communicolion and Access

+« launched a quafterly corporate newsletter Ombudsman Weslern Ausltralia in March 2008
which is circulated to key stakeholders,

« Introduced a 's_c_heduled ‘Ask the Ombudsman' slols on the 6PR Nighlline program that
provides opportunities for listeners to raise questions with the Gmbudsman four to six times a
year, :

= Delivered a number of papers io conferences and made a number of presentalions lo
community groups and public autharities.

« Participated in the production of an information DVD te be provided fo all new arrivals in
Australia, as part of an inltiative of the Federal Attorney General and the Public Purposes Trust.
The DVD is about Auslralian law and wilf assist to increase migrant awareness of the
Ombtidsman's role and services.

Organisational Development and improvement

« Identified four key strategic priorilies following a strategic planning day with staff in September
2007 and consultation with key stakeholders. These refate fo continuing to build on
improvements in timeliness and efficiency of complaint resolution; strengthening the office
focus on administrative improvement; planaing for new and enhanced functionality; and
enhancing the office's strategic and corporate services.

» Implemented a new struclure in March 2008 to support the office’s strategic direction.

« Successfuily tfransitioned the office’s financial management services to the Office of Shared
Services in December 2007.

Operational Structure

The Ombudsmaon

The Partiamentary Commissioner for Administrative Investigations - more commonly known as the
Ombudsman - is an independent officer appointed by the Governor of Westen Australia. The
Ombudsman is responsible directly to the Parliament rather than to the Government of the day or a
particular Minister.

The Ombudsman’s governing legislation is the Parfiamentary Commissioner Act 1971,

The Parliamentary Commissioner Act 1971 provides that the core function of the Ombudsman is 1o
investigate administrative aclions of the public authorities covered by the Parllamentary
Caemmissioner Act 1971 and make recommendations for administrative improvements and prevent
problems from arising. P

The Ombudsman considers whether the actions (or fack of actions) and decisions have beén fair,
reasonable and within the law, The Ombudsman's services are free.
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Overviaw of the Ombudsman's Olfice

The Ombudsman's office fuifils this role by:

o providing an impartial, efficient and effective complaint-handling system to investigate and
resoive complaints:

« providing a telephone enquiry sarvice 1o deal with simple mallers quickly through informal
resolution processes and 1o refer matters that cannot be handled by the office to other bodies;

o identifying and investigating issues of concern lo Parlament or the communily, irrespective of
whether complainis have been received,;

+ developing community awareness of the role of the Ombudsman and the services provided by
the office; and

« assisling public authorities to improve their administrative practices, in¢luding their own interna
comphaint-handling sysiems.

Some of the Ombudsman’s functions are derived from other legislation, codes or service delivery
arrangements. Details are set out in the lakle below.

: Lugaglaﬁcn cadx or scrvzc«e«

'Ombudsmam nwwtzgaiwc fuga;,m:ms deruvg;d fmm csmr:r l&q;slai;m :
o deisvary armngcmem_ e

CD?’EES mr &;W’VEC?‘ dei‘\f(}?’j arrangemm!s

Pubhc Interest Disclosure Act
2003

The Ombudsman receives disclosures under the Public Interest
Disclosure Act 2003 {the PID Acl) about matters of State and local
government adminisiration that affect an individual. Investigations by the
Ombudsman under the PID Act follow the process set owl in the
Parliamentary Commissioner Act 1971,

Tarrorism (Preventative

Datention) Acl 2006
The Ombudsman can receive complainls from a person delained under

the Terrorism (Preveritative Detention) Act 2006, abowt administrative
matters connettad with his or her delention.

National Code of Practive for
Regislrafion Authorifies and
Providers of Education and
Training to Overseas Students

The Nafional Code of Praclice for Registration Authorities and Providers of
Education and Training for Querseas Students 2007 came into offect on 1
July 2007, The Code gives internaticnal students the right of appeal to an
external and independent body, such as the Ombudsman, if their internal
appeals were unsuccessful at school or university level.
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Overview of the Ombudsmon's Olfice

: Ombudsmaﬂ mveshgatwc f’unciacns dé‘s%‘l\/({:d from oiher egls ahon
: codes or.sarvice del sv&ry :arrangements i :

A service delivery arrangemant between the State Ombudsman and the
Commenwealth Government enables the Cmbudsman’s office to offer its
services to residents of the Indian Qcean Territories (Christmas and
Cocos (Keelingy islands).  This covers pubtic authorities in the
Ombudsman's jurisdictior: that operate in the Terrilories at the
Commonwealth’s request,

* Legislation, code or Ser
hs delivefy arrang&memt

‘9?53

Indfan Ocean Temlorias
(Administration of Laws) Act
1992

The Ombudsman also has ather functions as set out in the table below:

"Qmiﬁt}iﬁsﬁ%ﬁah._(uﬁslioﬁé i

Weslern Australia’s Gas Industry Ombudsman scheme was established in
2004 and ihe Electricity Ombudsman scheme in 2005, when these roles
were combined to form the Energy Ombudsman. The geverning body of
the two schemes is Energy indusiry Cmbudsman {(Western Austratia)
Limited. nder a service delivery arrangament with the governing body,
the Ombudsman undertakes the role of the Energy Ombudsman for the
schemes. The costs of the governing body arnd the Energy Cmbudsman
arg met by industry members,

The Ombudsman has a separate function auditing telecommunication
interception activities thal are carried oul by the Western Australia Police
ang tha Corruption and Crime Cormmission.  Due to the invasive nature of
such aclivities, they are striclly regulated and the Ombudsman is

responsible for ensuring that the intercepts are carried out in accordance
with statutory requirements,

The Ombudsman iz & member of the Siate Records Commission which
was established in July 2001 under the State Records Act 2000, Other
members of the Commission are the Auditor General, the Information
Commissioner, and a person wilh record-keeping experience from outside
government who is appointed by the Gavernor for a three year term.

The Commission monitors the eperation of, and compliance with, the
legislation, monitors record-keaping compliance by government bodies
and makes enquides into alleged breaches of the legislation. The
Commission reports direct to Parliament and submils a separate annual
reporl to Parament.

Page &

; "'Leglslalson s

' Economrc Regulanan Aufhonty'

Act 2003
Etectricity Industry Act 2004
Energy Coordination Act 1994

Parliamantary Commissianer
Act 1971 (secticn 34)

Telecommunications
{Inferception) Act 1879
(Commonwealth}

Telecommunications
{Interception) Wastern
Australia Act 1996

Corruption and Crime

Cammission Act 2003
State Records Act 2000



Oveviaw of the Ombudsman's Office

Other legistation relevant (o the Ombudsman's aclivilias

Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003 Fubilic Sector Management Act 1994

Disabitity Services Act 1493 Royal Commissions Act 1968

Equal Opportunity Act 1984 Royal Commission (Pofice) Act 2002

Financial Managemen! Act 2006 Slate Adriinistrative Tribunal Act 2004

Inspector of Custodial Services Act 2003 Stale Supply Commission Acl 1991

Cecupational Safety and Mealth Act 1984 Workers' Compensation and Rehabifitation Act
1981

Prisons Act 1581

Powers of the Ombudsman
The Ombudsman may commence an investigation:

¢ in response to a written complaint from any person or crganisation personally affected by an
administrative act or omissien of a public authorily covered by the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction;

« on raferral by either House of Parliament, a commitiee of either House, or a joint commiitee of
both Houses; or

+ on ihe Ombudsman’s own motion.

The Parllamentary Commissioner Act 1971 sets out the powers of the Ombudsman, including:

+ at any time, tabling in Parliament a report on any matter arising in connection with the exercise
of the Ombudsman’s funclions;

« wide investigative powers, including those of a Royal Commission;
« discretion whether to commence or continue an investigation;

» recommending o an agency that redress be given to a complainant and that practices,
procedures or legislation be reviewed to prevert recurrence; and

» providing the Premier and Parliament with a report where an agency does not accept the
Ombudsman’s recommendations within a reasonable timeframe.

The Parfiamentary Commissioner Act 1971 also ideniifies limits on the Ombudsman's powers. The

Ombudsman cannot;

o investigate the decisions of courts, Cabinet or ministers of the Crown, but may investigate
recommeandations made to ministers;

o make adverse commaents in a reporl about any person unless that person is given a prior
apporiunity to respond;

« digclose information or make a stalement about an investigation except in accordance with the
provisions of his Act; ar

» make a determination on a matler.
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Gverview of the Ombudsmaon’s Office

Frocess for Assessing and Hondling Complaints

The Parfiameniary Commissioner Act 1971 provides wide-ranging discretionary powers to help
determing the scope and nature of invesligations. Al complainls are assessed before an
investigation commences to:

« determine whether the authority complzined about is within the Ombudsman's jurisdiction
(State Govarnmant departments or agencies, prisons, schooils, technical colleges, universities
and iocal governmaerts); and

+» determine whether:
o the action or decision complained about relates to a matter of administration;
o the action compiained about was within the agency’s powers or functions;
o the complainant is personally affected by the action or decision;

o the complainant became aware of the aclion or decision within 12 months of making the
coemplaint; and

o the complainant has or had a legal remedy or a right of review or appeal.
The Ombudsman can exercise discretion about whether or notl o invesligate a camplaint in
situations where:
« special circumstances exisi for matters over 12 months old,

« the complainant has a legal remedy or right of review or appeal where it is not reasonable to
expect the complainant to resort to that remedy;

» the complaint appears to be frivolous, trivial, vexalious, ar not in good faith;

» an investigation does not appear to be warranted in the circumstances, such as where the
agency is still investigating the complaint, or where another complaint-taking body may be
more appropriate; or

+ the complainant does not have a sufficient personal interest in the matter.

New assessment procedures were introduced as part of implementing the new structure in March
2008 whereby complex matters are refarred to the new investigation and Resalution Team after an
initial screening process, This enables the Assessment and Resclution Team to focus on guick
resolution of simple cases, generally through informat mechanisms. Resources have been
realiocated within the siructure to provide for an additional telephone enquiry officer to deal with
simple matters quickly and informalty.

As parl of streamlining the complaint handling processes, the office has developed a guide to
identifying when certain complaints shouid be prioritised,

Complaints are ranked as either P1, P2 or P3, as detailed in the table below.

Page (0



Overeimw of the Orabudsmr’s Office

'Cﬁ.ﬁ?i’f@fﬂ U Criterlan R
Rankig 000 S
i Cases where the complalnt Involves the suggestion of immediate risk of harm to & child

or other vulnerable person,
p2 Casas where the complaint suggests there is an immediale and serious consequance
to the complainant, such as significant financial loss, hometessness, or logs of

imrnigration status,

P3 All other cases,

Where a rmatter is given P1 or P2 stalus, it is referred for immediate assessment and investigation.

If a complaint is oul of the Ombudsman's jurisdiction or there is & more appropriate body to
investigate the malter, the complaint is referred 10 the appropriate body.

If a decision is made not to investigate a complaint, the complainant is advised and provided with
reasons for the decision. if a decision is made to investigate, the agency and the complainan! are
advised,

A formal or an informal investigation can he conducted. The majorily of the investigations
undertaken by the office are conducted informally. Investigations are prioritised according to a
range of factors such as whether there Is any urgency allached to the oulcome.

Formal investigations may invoive the Ombudsman’'s Reyal Commission powers and are used
where there are high public interest or public policy implications in the matter or informal resslution
s unlikely to be successiul, and where:

« lhers is a reasonable prospect of proving an alfegation or group of allegations,;
« practical ouicomes can be achieved for the complainant; and
o importani systemic policy, procedural or legislative issues are involved.

Once an investigation is finalised, if the Ombudsman’s office considers thai the complaint is not
sustained and the office is of the view that no administrative improvements are required, the
complainant will be advised and will generally be given the opportunity to comment before a final
decision is made.

If it is considered that a complainant has been adversely affected by the actions or decisions of the
public sutharity, bath the autharity and the complainant will be advised and given the opportunity to
regpond to any issues. The office may also make recommendalions for change to the agency and,
in this case, the relevant minister will be advised.

Often the public authority will agree with the office and take action thal will assist the complainant
andfor improve the authority’s policy and processes. The complainani will be advised of any
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Overview of e Ombudsmon’s Office

B

outcome. if the action needed may take some time to implement, the office will ask the public
authority to advise when it has been completed or follow-up with the authority later. [n the event

that the public authbrity does not agree, the Ombudsman may provide a report to the Premier and
Parliament if required.

Qverview of the complaint investigation process

Assess complainl {o determing axtent
of gur involvemsn*

Notify CEO of public authority {and the
Minister if & formal investigation).
- Generaly ask - Request report [ram authority L
 complainant o *  compiainant, 5o
Zido Ihis first and:  nthier adtion
- return to bs if not: L R
S aatishied 0 Analyse report and other information R :

collecled during invastigation

i preliminary viow is against
public authority or individuai
(and recommendations made
to remedy administrative

deficiencies) nolify public If prafiminary view is thal
authorily or individual and invite corplaint is not sustained,
comment advise complainant and

invite cornment

»+7 Advise public authority and complainant {and: !
- Minislez if recommendalion made or a formal.
-t investigation): Report to the Premier andfor
= Parliament if requires). Monitor public autherity
T responge to recommondations. LT

Appendix 1 gives details of all allegations received and finalised about public authorities during the
reporting period.
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Cvareieer of the Orbsdermon’s Glfice

Governanecs Framework

The mission of the Ombudsman's office is to assist the Padiament of Western Australia to be
confident that the public sector of the State is accountable for, and is improving the standard of,
administrative decision-making, practices and conduct,

In achieving this misgion, the Ombudsman acts in a way that is independent, fair and accountable.

The core values of the office are acting jusily, squitably, effliciently and effeclively. Acting justly
impiies that Ombudsman staff make decisions fairly, impartiatly and legally. Equity implies that all
people and organisations have equal access to the Ombudsman's office and ifs processes, and
that all people are treated with respect and dignily and without bias. Efficiency and effectiveness
fundamentally concern stewardship of public regsources, The office ensures that resources are
utilised to pursue the mission of the office. Furlher, staff will provide reliable, eflicient and effective
service to their clients, treating them professianally, courteously and with appropriate sensitivity.

Chris Field, Ombudsman

Chris has held the position of Ombudsman since March 2007, He concurrently holds the roles of
Energy Ombudsman and State Records Commissioner. Prior to his appointment as Ombudsman,
Chris was a Member of the Economic Regulation Authority, Weslern Australia, Chair of the
Consumer Utilities Advocacy Centre, Director of the Energy and Water Ombudsman Victoria, Chalr
in Consumer Law, La Trobe University and Principal of Chris Field Consulting Pty Lid. Chris holds
Arts and Law (Monours) degrees and is an Adjunct Professor at both the University of Western
Austratia and La Trobe University.

Heather Brown, Deputy Ombudsman

Heather commenced in the position of Deputy Ombudsman in May 2005. Heather joined the office
after more than 20 years in the Wesiern Australian public sector. During this time she worked in
agencies responsible for health, local government, consumer affairs, disability services, land
administration and land information. Heather holds a Doctor of Phitosophy in Psychology from the
University of Western Australia.

Kim Lazenby, Assistant Ombudsman, Administrative Improvements

Kim commenced in the posilion of Assistani Ombudsman in June 2008, Kim has 20 vears
experiance in government, working at the Commonwealth and State levels, in both line and central
agencies. After her early career in the fields of employment, education and training, Kim has
worked in a range of regulatory roles, including with Auditor-General's offices in both Victoria and
Westlemn Australia. She holds a number of qualifications including a Master of Assessment and
Evaluation from the University of Melbourme.
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Overviaw of the Ombudsman's Office

Mary White, Executive Director Strategic and Corporate Services

Mary was appainted to her current position in February 2008, Prior to this, Mary was the Direclor of
Corporate and Business Services for the office. Mary has 25 years of experience in the public
sector including strategic and cerporate lsadership roles in independent stafutory offices and
experience in the education and infrastructure seclors. Mary holds a range of qualifications
ingluding a Bacshelor of Science (Genetics and Statistics), a Diploma in Education and a Post
Graduate Diploma in Arts (Public Policy).

Sarah Cowle, D_i__réctor Research and Projects

Sarah co'rijimenceci in her current position in January 2008, Prior 1o this, Sarah worked in an
investigative role in the office for more than six years. Sarah joined the office afler 16 years in the
Wastern Australian public secter, Sarah holds a Bachelor of Arts (Geography),

Julie Roberts, Director investigation and Resolution

Julie joined the office in 2005 and commenced in her current role in February 2007, Julie has
more than 25 years experience in the Commonweaith and State public sectors and the non-
government community services sector, mainly in the human gervices in the adult and child
protection jurisdiciions. Julie halds a Bachelor of Applied Science (Social Work).

Jo Merrick, Director Access and Resolution

Jo joined the office in 2000, working largely in investigative roles, before being appointed 1o her
current position in June 2008. Jo came to the office from the City of Perth, where she spent six
years in a variety of roles, including Executive Research Officer within the Chief Executive's office.
Jo, a qualified lawyer, holds a Bachelor of Laws.

Andrew Harvey, Case Management System Project Director

Andrew joined the office in 2008, managing the office’s investigation leam until November 2007,
when he besame responsible for managing the introduction of the office’s new case management
system - RESOLVE. Andrew has worked for a diverse range of Commonwealth and State
agencies inciuding the Australian Bureau of Stafistics, Office of the Auditor General and the
Ecenomic Regulation Authority. Andrew holds a Bachelar of Arts (Politics and Anthropology) and a
Masters in Criminal Justice.

Wayne Mann, Manager Energy

Wayne joined the office in 2002 and commenced his current rale in 2005, Wayne has been
employed in the Western Australian public sector far over 35 years in a range of adminisirative,
research, advisory and management positions for agencies such as the Public Works Department,
Mines Department, Public Service Commission and the Department of the Premier and Cabinet,
Wayne was the inaugural CEQ of the Anti Corruption Commission. Wayne holds a Bachelor of
Business (Management) and a Diploma in Work 3tudy.
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Crvayview of the Ombudsman's Glfice

The Ombudsman's office has a strong organisational policy framework covering governance,
conduct, communications and human resources, Polices are available to staff through the office's
intranet and new staff are informed aboui them as part of their induction.

During the year, the office reviewed and updated #ts Instrument of Belegation Chief Executive
Officer Funclions to clarify decision making roles and responsibiliies under the office’s new
structure, which was implemanted in March 2008,

An internal audit and risk management charter has been developed for the Ombudsman's office
that sets cut the internal audit process and provides for an Internal Audit and Risk Management
Committes, The committee meets quarterly to consider the annual audit program, internal audit
plans and scope documents, and the annual gvaluation of internal audil activities.

Crgonisalional Shuclure

The Ombudsman's office has four key business areas, which were established under a new
organisational structure in March 2008:

» The Executive Team includes the Gmbudsman, Deputy Qmbudsman, the Principal Assistant
Ombudsman, and the Exsculive Director, Strategic and Corporate Services who oversee the
operations of the office including the Energy Ombudsman function.

o The complaint-handling function is undertaken by the Complaint Resoiulion Team, split into
two teams; the Access and Resolution Team which is responsible Tor the inlial assessment
of complaints, resolution of more straight forward cases and the office’s telephone enquiry
service; and the Investigation and Resolution Team, which deals with more complex cases.
A newly established sfructure for complaint-handling has been designed and implemented to
streamling complaint handling, 1o give a clearer focus to quick and informal resolution of
simple matters and to allow a more flexible and efficient use of resources.

o The Administrative Improvement Team has responsibility for a broad range of strategies
aimed at improving administrative praclice across the public sector. This feam also has
responsipility for monitoring compliance by the Corruption and Crime Commisgion and
Western Ausiralia Police with lelecommunications infercept legislation.

»  The Strategic and Corporate Services Team supports the office in strengthening its strategic
focus and governance and responding in a timely and effective way to emerging issues of
sigrificant concernn. This team encompasses Research and Projects, Communications and
Business Services. As well as undertaking sirategic planning projects, it enhances the office’s
capacity to communicate effectively with public autharities and the public and to play a leading
rele in promoting integrity acress the sector. It also provides corporale governance and
businass services 1o the office,
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Querview of the Ombudsmaon’s Glice

Shared Business Services

The Ombudsman’s office is co-located with the Commonwealth Ombudsman’s Perth office, the
Office of the Public Séstor Standards Commissioner, the Office of Health Raview and the Freadom
of Information Commissioner. Parts of the Business Services section of the office are shared with
the Office of the Public Sector Standards Commissioner, inciuding information technology services,
records, reception and general administration. The shared arrangements of business services also
provide reception and other services for the Office of Health Review, the Commonweallh
Ombudsman and 1he Informafion Commissioner under a Memorandum of Understanding.
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Gvarview of the Omibirdsmenss Clfice
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Overview of the Ombudsman’s Office

Performance Management Framework

Milssion

The mission of the Ombudsman's office is to assist the Parliament of Western Australia to be
sonfident that the public sector of the State is accountable for, and is improving the slandard of,
administrative decision-making, practices and conduct.

eiﬁ%iaﬁsh;é&_%gj Govemnment Gouls

The Om_budsrﬁan‘s office supports the goal of a skilied, diverse and ethical public sector as shawn
below: -

S@rvsce 'pmwd{.d by tha :

:Deszred cutcomaa of the G
_ _Ombudsmaﬂ 5 ofhc@ :

. Government goal

Develeping and maintaining 2 The public seclor of Western Investigation of complainis about

skilled, diverse and ethical Australia is accountable for, and administrative actions of public

public sector serving the is improving the standard of, sector prganisations.

Government with administrative decision-making,

consideration of the public _ practices and candugt.

interest. ; : - S
Confidence that Inspection of eligible authorities 1o

tetecommunication interceptions ensure compliance with statutory
are conducted in accordance with  provisions when they intercem
statutory provisions., telecommunications.

Major Achievemenis for 2007-08 and Plunned Inlfiaiives for 2008-09

The Ombudsman's office outlined planned major achievements for 2007-08 in the 2007-08 budget
papers and planned initiatives for 2008-09 in the 2008-09 budge! papers. A summary of the
ouicames for 2007-08 and forward planning for 2008-09 is detailed below,

+  Significant prograss was made in implementing relevant recommendations of the review of
the former Depariment of Community Developmant that will see the Ombudsman take on new
responsibilities for the review of notifiable deaths of children known to the Depariment of Chiid
Protection,

« Implemented a new case management sysltem 1o continue lo improve operational
effectiveness in refation to the investigation of complaints.

+ Participated in a national Ombudsman's trial of sirategies for managing challenging.' '
compiainants and developed tocls and guidelines for public secloar agencies.
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Overview of the Ombodsmion’s Office

Complated an investigation into the complaints system for Indigenous prisoners at Broome
prison,

Provided advice to the Department of Correclive Services, the Department of Child Protection
and the Department of Education and Training on development of internal cempiaint syslems.,

Partnered wilh the Commonwealth Ombudsman and New South Wales Ombudsman in the
second year of an AusAlD project to sirengthen the capacity of Ombudsmen in Indonesia.
The office provided experi advice (o Indonesian Ombudsman staff to improve their
invastigative and complaint handling skills through placement programs in Indonesia and
Australia.

Significantly reduced the number of older cases on hand through enhanced case
management and staff training and development,

Over 5,000 people contacted the Ombudsman's office during the financial year. The majorily
of concerns raised with the office were deail with informally. The office dealt with 1,119 formal
complaints for investigation,

Facilitate the drafting of lagislative change to the Parlfamentary Commissioner Act 1971 to
anabla the Ombudsman to undertake child death reviews and, subjedt to this being passed by
the Western Austratian Parliament, esiablish a new specialist unit to take on the
responsibiliies for the review of notifiable deaths of children known to the Departmaent of Child
Frotection.

Work with educational institulions on the resolution of complaints and the development of
compiaint handling procedures under the new National Code of Practice for Regisfration
Authorities and Providers of Education and Training for Overseas Students 2007 for
registared providers of education services {o overseas students.

Improve the capacity to idenfify arnd address key systemic issues through the newly
eslablished administrative improvement team.

Continue to make further improvements to the timeliness, consistency and quality of
investigations through a range of slrategies, including through the implementation of a new
case management system.

Continue 1o raise the profile of the Ombudsman amongst stakeholder groups and promote
accessibility, paricularly for regional and indigenous groups, to the Ombudsman through
development and implementalion of a communications strategy.

Parlner with the Commonwealth and New South Wales Ombudsmen in {he third year of an
AusAID project to strengthen the capacily of Ombudsmen in Indonesia through ongoing
provision of experl advice and parlicipation in placement aclivities i Indonesia and Australia.
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Agenoy Performoance

Key Performance Indicaiors

Key Ef?&c%év&_ﬁesg Indicators

The key effectiveness indicators of the Ombudsman’s office repart on the extent ta which public
seclor agencies have improved their decision-making, praclices and conduct as a result of
recommendations and suggestions made by the Ombudsman.

There were 1,249 allegations received during the year and 1,244 allegations finalised. During the
yesar, agencies responded to 34 recommendations for improvemnent made by the Ombudsman. The
effectiveness of the Ombudsman in achieving improved administrative decision-making and
practices in agencies is shown by the increasing acceptance of recommendations for improvement
over the iast four years, with all 34 {100%) being accepted by agencies in 2007-08.

Table 1

| 200405200500

- Key Effectiveriess Indiedtors

2006-07

Of allegations where Ombudsman made 88% 88% 94% 95% 100%
recommendatiens to improve practices or :
procedures, percentage of recommendations
accepted by agencies (indicator introduced in
2004/2005) (a}

Number of improvements to practices or 14 57 50 80 34
orocedures as a result of Cmbudsman action
{(indicator introduced in 2004/2005) (b)

(a} For agency responses in 2007-08, the percentage of recommendatiens and suggestions relating to
improved practices and procedures that were accepled by the agency.

(b} For agency responses in 2007-08, the number of recommendations and suggestions relaling to
improved praclices aryl procedures thal were acceptad by the agency,

The percentage of recommendations accepled has improved steadily over the last three years and
is now 100 per cent, above the targeted figure of 95 per cent.

There was a material variaticn between the budgeted figure for 2007-08 of 80 improvemenis to
practices or procedures, and the actual figure of 34. As can be seen from the last four years, the
number of recommendations each year can vary considerably depending on the nature of the
complaints investigated. The target for 2007-08 was an cveresiimate based on the anticipated
number of improvements in 2006-37, which included an unusual case that had 24 recommended
improvements. If this outlier case is excluded from the actual numbers for 2006-07, the number of
accepted recommendations in 2007-08 is slightly higher than the previous year. E
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Agancy Perdonmonce

Kev Efiiciency Indicabors

The Ombudsman's key efficiency indicators for Service 1: lnvestigation of Complaints about
Administrative Actions of Public Sector Organisations relate to timeliness of complaint handling
and the cost per allegation, These indicators show a subslantial improvement in the timeliness of
complaint handling this year.

Table 7~ Public Sector Organisations 71

CoOUT-081 T 200708

Percentage of allegations finalised 67% 63% 69% 0% 78%
within threg morniths

Percentage of allegations finalised 93% 0% 89% 95% 95%
within 12 merths

Percentage of allegations on hand 43% 34% 33% 40% 51%
at 30 June less than three months

ol

Percentage of allegations on hand B4% 77% 76% 85% B5%
at 30 June fess than 12 months old

Cost per finatised allegation (a) §9,724 51,582 (b) 52,579 $2,219 $2,941

(&) Thig is the nel cost of Service 1 divided by the number of allegations finalised,

(b} Gest figures from 200506 onwards do ot Include capital user charges. To allow comparison, the 2005-
06 figures are those shown in the 2006-07 Budge! Papers and differ from those shown in the 2005-06
Annual Reporl which did include capital user charges. The 2004-05 cost figure includes capital user
charges and has not baen adjusted.

There has been a significant improvement in the timeliness of complaint handling this year, with all
targets met and, in some cases, exéeeded by a considerable amount. This has arisen due to a
strong focus in recent years on efficiency and fimeliness of the compiaint handling process. The
office will sontinue to build on this achievement in the future.

The cost per allegation has increased this year because there has been full staffing of the office
compared to last year, where there were some positions unfilled during the year. The additional
slaffing costs have resulled in an increase in the cost per allegation, but have also resulled in a
significant improvement in service delivery, particularly in the timelingss of complaint resolution, In
2008-09 and the out vears, the office will be targeting a reduction in cost per allegation handled,
and is currently implementing significant operational and organisational restructuring and
enhancements {o achigve this cutcomae.
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Agency Pedarmance

The Ombudsman’s key efficiency indicator for Service 2: Inspection of Eligible Authorities to
Ensure Compliance with Statutory Provisions When They Infercept Telecommunications relales to
the cost per inspection.

;.._Té:i::a.ﬁe 47 Service 7 Téi_e.con";_m'uniq'éiéaaf}'é Int _'t.‘::ep_f Audit

200405 200506

200708
- Aotual

2007-06
o Target

2006:07

Average cost per inspection (a) $3,06 83,333 (b) $2,341 53,378 54,254

(a) ?his is the net cost of Service 2 divided by the number of inspections conducted that examined warrants
issued in 2007-08,

{(h) Cost figures frem 2006 onwards do net include capital user charges. To allow comparison the 2008
figures are those shown in the 2007 Budget Papers and differ from those shown in the 2005 - 2006
Annual Report which did include capital user charges, The 2004-05 cost figure includes capilal user
charges and has nol been adjusted.

The cost per inspection in 2007-08 is slightly higher than the target because there have been
slighlly fewer inspeclions than anticipated. However this is not a true reflection of workload as
there have been a similar total number of warrants examined during these inspections.

See page 69 for the Independent Audit Opinion and Certification of Rey Performance Indicators.
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Report on Qperaiions

Complaints and Enquiries

infroduciion

This section provides an overview of one of the Ombudsman's core functions - complaint
investigation and resolution. it also covers the enquiry function handled by the office. Information
is provided on the number and nature of complaints and enquiries, as well as case studies that
demonstrate the range and possible cutcomes o the complaints dealt with. Information is also
provided on four areas thal made up approximalely 50 percent of all complaints received during
the year. These are corrective services, local government, public housing and public education.

Complaints and Engultles Recelved In 2007-08

The Ombudsman’s office investigales complaints from people adversely affected by admirzistfat'iv_é
actions or omissions by Western Ausiralian public authorilies and makes recommendations 1o
redrass defective administration and prevent its rescourrence. An investigalion examines the
decisions, actions and practices of public authorities to determine if they are fair, reasonable and
within the law. Some complainis are complex and inglude a number of different allegations.

The amount of work involved in an investigation varies considerably from case o case. In terms of
these slatistics, there is no quantitative or qualitative weighling of relative impartance or
complexily. Complex allegations and those requiring major investigations are freated in the same
way statistically as straighiforward enes.

As seen in the chart below, the number of complaints and allegations handled by the office in
2007-08 has remained relatively steady after a decline in 2006-07. The office received 1,119
complaints involving 1,248 separaie aliegations during the year and finalised 1,244 allegations.

Number of Complaints and Allegations Recelived

2000 -

16502

1500 - 1275 1249
1600

500 -

2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08

Mumber of Complaints Received 81 Nuniber of Alsgations Recsived:
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Report on Qperalions

There is increasing use of email to make complaints and this has resulted in an increase in
complaints where the location is unknown; 18 per cent in 2007-08 compared to 10 per cent in
2006-07, Of the allegations where the geographical Iocation is knawn, 31 per cent are fram country
locations, a decline from 33 per cent in 2006-07. Many (33%) of the complaints from countey
lacations are from regicnal prisoners. If complaint issues from prisoners are excluded, the
perceniage of all: complaints received from country locations falls to 17 per ceni. The office has
priorifised the development of strategies to improve access for Indigenous people and pecple from
regionat locations. The decline in ailegations from reglonal locations highlights the importance of
these strategies. -

The office also handles thousands of telephone enquities each year and a number of people visil
the office to make enquiries. Some enguiries are from people seeking generai information and

" some are from public authorities and other accountability agencies seeking advice but most are
from people seeking advice on how to make a complaint. As far as possible the office provides
advice and assistance o enguirers. Whese the person's complaint relates to a matter outside of the
Ombudsman's jurisdiction, they are generally referred to an appropriate alternative agency. If the
matter is within the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction but the person has not already raised the matter with
the public autharity concerned, they are referred back to the relevant public authority in the first
instance. They are advised to come back to the Ombudsman if the matter is not resolved by the
autherity, As seen in the charts below, over the past three years there has been an increasing
number of enquiries, particularly visits to the office. In 2007-08 the office handled 4,005 enguiries
including 115 from people coming into the office,

Total aumber of enquiries Total number of office visits
5000
150 -
4006
4000 | 3654 8% Bm??d
2000 - b
2000 -
50
1000 -
0 s e ] . o b -

2104-05 200508 2008-07 2007-08 004-05 200548 2006-07 H07-08

In recent years, while there has been some decline in the number of complaints, there has been an
increase in the complexity of complaints made to the office, affecting both the time and level of
skills needed ta undertake investigations, Ombudsmen in other jurisdictions have reported a simitar
trend.

A range of factors may be contributing te the trend to increased complexity in complainté, The .
enquiry service provided by the office encourages people to raise their concerns directly with the

Foge 24
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public authority in the first instance, In addition, the office has undertaken considerable work with
public authorilies to assist them to imprave their infernal complaint-handling systems, particularly
since the intreduction of the Governmant's policy on camplaint handiing in 2004. This year, the
Ombudsman's office worked closely with the Departmend of Corrective Services and the
Cepariment for Child Prateclion.

The increasing use of the enguiry service, in conjunction with improved internal complaint handling
processes may meaan straighiforward complaints are being resolved by the public authorities. As a
result, the complaints referred to the Ombudsman have declined stightly in number but tend to be
the more complex and intractable matters, Infernat resclulion of complaints is a posilive oulcome
for complainants and public authorilies, and means that the resources and expertise of the office
can be directed to the areas where they are most needed.

A Stale Government employee had been salary sacrificing through a company
contracted by their employer. Part of the arrangement involved salary sacrificing an
amount thal was due fo go into a merlgage account. However, the complainant
discovered that the amount was nol credited to the mortgage bul was being
retained by the company because it had overpaid the complainant the previous
year.

The complainant telepheﬁed the Ombudsman’s enguiry service ahout 1?1@ matier,

Ombudsman staff contacted the relevant Government apency far advuce The agency adv;sed that,
generally, comalaints about satary sacrificing should nitially be taken up with the company and then the
payroll area of a parson's employing agency. If it could not be resolved after going through those stages,
then the agency became Involved.  However, given fhat this sliuation involved missed mortgage
repayments with potenlialiy serious ramifications for the complainant, the agency offered o assist
irnmediately.

This case shows how the Ombudsman's office can halp to resolve enquirfss: quickly and iﬁforﬁ’la:‘.'y.

Thmeliness of Complant Hondling In 200708

Over the past year, there was a continued strong focus on redusing the backlog of older cases and
improving the timeliness of investigations. The office strives to resolve complaints quickly and
infarmally, where appropriate, without undertaking detailed investigation. More than three quarters
of complaints (82%) received during the year were finalised al the initial assessment stage. This is
slightly higher than the previous year, when 77 per cent were finalised at the initial stage.

By giving priority to early resolution of new complairds and older, more complex cases, the office
has achieved a substantial improvement in the time taken 1o handle complaints.
As shown in ihe chart below, the key achievements have bean:

o a reduction in the last year of 17 per cent in the average age of allegations on hand at 30
June (the reduction over the last two years has been 31%): and

« @ reduction of 36 per cent in the last year in the average time taken to finalise allegalions.
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Average age of allegations
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1 Average time to finalise allegations
Average age of allegations on hand

The office has alsc reduced the number of older cases on hand. The number of ailegations on
hand more than 12 months old fell by 20 per cent over the year (from 46 at 30 June 2007 to 37 at
30 June 2008). The office was also successful in reducing the number of cases older than six
months from 84 1o 78 over the same period. Overall, the average age of allegations on hand at 30
June 2008 had fallen from 235 days in 2006-07 1o 196 days in 2007-08.

Most complaints (78%) are now
regsolved within three meanths and
only @ small percentage (5%),
generally the highly complex
camplaints, take more than 12
months, The improving trend in
the time taken %o handle
complaints is shown by the
continuing reduction in  the
numbar of complaints more than
six months old and more than 12
months old as shown adjacent
chart. Timely complaint handling
will continue to be a focus for the
office.

Altegations on hand
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1 Number of allegations on hand more than 12 months old
& Number of allegations on hand more than 6 months old
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Complaints and Allegotions Finolised

In 2007-0G8, the majority of complaints (82%) were finalised at the initiai stage, for the following
reasons:

An assessment is made that the complaint is out of jurisdiction, usually because it relates to
the decision of a Minister or Cabinet, is not an administrative matler, or the public authority
complained about is not covered by the Ombudsmarn's jurisdiction;

The complainant has an allernative legal remedy or right of review or appeal where it is
reasonable to expect the compiainant to resor to that remedy,

The complaint has been informally resolved to the satisfaction of the complainant;

The complainant withdraws the complaint or decides not {0 proceed, for example if the person
Is satisfied with an explanation provided hy the public authorily;

The malter is referred back to the public authorily, for exampie, where the public authority is
still investigating the complaint. In this case it may come back to the Ombudsman if the maiter
is not resolved by the authorily; or

Further investigation does not appear to be warranted in the clrcumsiances. This may ocour
where initial investigation reveals another body, such as the Corruption and Crime
Commission, may be more appropriate (or is already investigaling the malter), the maller is
mare than 12 months old, is not an administrative maller, the complainant does not have
sufficient persenal interest in the matter or, in rarg circumstances, where the complaint
appears to be frivolous, trivial, vexalicus, or not in good faith.

This stage generally involves obtaining further material from the complainant and contact with the
public authorily fo determine its perspective. I§ may also involve contact with other complais
handlng bedies {o determine their invelvement. The complainart is giver reasons for any decision
not to investigate or to cease investigation and is referred to an alternative where possible,

The remaining complaints (18%) were finalised following a completed investigation with one of the
{ollowing outcomes:

The complaint was wholly or partly sustained. In these cases the Ombudsman makes
recommendations for remedial action for the complainant and fo improve adminisirative
practices to prevent reoccurrence,;

The complainant withdrew the complaint; or

The complaint was nol sustained. In some cases the investigation process highlights areas for
improvement 1o administrative praclices and the authorily may advise the Ombudsman of
valurtary action 1o make appropriate changes.
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3

The number of complaints finalised during the reporting period was 1093, These contained 1,244
allegations finalised as shown in the chart below.

Allegations finalised in 2007-08

_ Qut of jurisdigtion [~ - mo 1192
Allernative remedy or right of review [ 5T ST T o323
Informal resolution of complainant [ 22 Finalised at
Withdrawn by compiainant [£]32 initial stage
. 1021 allegations (82%)
Referrad back to agency [Coo...]88
Further investigation nol warranted [ : RORSPRSE, T 364

Wholly or partly sustained [ _je0

. ) _ Finalised by
Withdrawn by complainant ﬁ::l 32 completed investigation
Could not be determined |4 223 allegations {18%)

Not sustained [T 127

This year 57 per cent of alilegations investigated were not sustained. In many cases, the
Ombudsman concluded that the agency had acted reasonably and within its powers. However,
some allegations could not be sustained due to a conflict of evidence that could not be resolved.
While a complainant may believe a public officer has acled unreasonably, it is offen found that the
cause is simply human error,

A university student commenced a Bachelor degree but experienced a number of
medical problems dusing their studies that affected their performance.” The
student’s course advisar suggested that they undertake unils from & relateé
dlsmplmeioallowthem ioccmpleie 1halrdegree - ; .

Afte; lakmg that advnce. the siudent was 1ater infﬂrmed that their COUESE progress had noi been
satisfactory and their academic status had been terminated. By that k;me the student had spent !cur years
and iz’wested a large amount of maney on their studies, - R

The student requested a Uaﬂsfer o an altamauve degree course but the umverszty said their grade
average was toa low and the mix 05 urits they had undertaken was niot related loa spemflc degrea.

Ombudsman staff contacted the umvermty and sought information about its termination process. As a
conseqguence, the university examined tha paperwork and agreed to allow the student to enrol in a related
degres, subject to the fulfilment of a number of prescribed conditions, The student agreed to the offer and
the matter was swiftly and informally resclved to their satisfaction,

This case demonstrates that pubﬂc'aumorilr‘es can resolve issues Informally and quickly when brought to
their aitention.
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Remediad Action o Baneilt the Comploinand

Complainants look fo the Ombudsman to facilitale some form of assistance or action to remedy the
probiem they have complained about. Such assistance may involve the public authority:

s issuing an apology;
«  expediting action,

« making an act of grace payment or reducing or withdrawing a monetary charge or
infringement;

o providing a refund or rebate;
s reversing or varying a decision; andfor

o providing an explanation or giving reasons for action {aken,

In some cases the complainant benefils from the involvement of the Ombudsman even though the
complaint is not sustained, for example, where the authority voluntarily changes ils praclices. The
office may also assisi a complainant by providing advice aboul where to lake their complaint if it is
about something that the Ombudsman cannol deal with,

The Ombudsman's role is to provide an independent and impartial investigation of complaints. The
percentage of complaints where assistance is provided to the complainant varies from year to year
depending on the nalure of the alegations received and is not a measure of the office's
perflormance. in 2007-08 assistance was provided 1o the complainand, either through remedisal
action or though advice about where to take their complaint, for 22 per cent of allegations finalised,
an insrease from 14 per cent in the previcus year,

The remedial action by public authorities to benefit the complainant as a result of Cmbudsman
investigations is shown in the chart beiow.

Remedial action by public authority to benefit complainant *
Apology or explanation

Changed or expedied
dacigions

Monetary Benefit |3y

Changes to faw , practice e

or protedure o

Other assistance

* Changes to faw, practice and progedure can occur that may not immediately benefit the complainant but
may bensfit them and olhers in the future. For example, the remedial actions that resulted from a comptaint
frem & female prisoner that she was subjecled fo a forced body search in the presence of male officers led
changas i¢ policies and procedures regarding such actions, particularly in relation to the use of force and the
praservation of dignity.
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Remedial Aclion fo Improve Public Administratlon

Improved administration may include changes io policy and procedures or other changes to
improve systems, improve record-keeping and training of staff. A key role of the Ombudsman is to
improve administralive decision making and practices in public authorities. One impartant way to
do this is through recommendations or suggestions for improvements to processes or procedures
as a result of shortcomings identified during the office’s enquiries. An agency may also voluniarily
take action to improve its administrative practices as a result of the Ombudsman’s enquiries.

In 2007-(8, adrhinislra%ive improvements agreed to by agencies as a resuit of the Ombudsman's
invesiigations resulted in:

v 34 recommendations and suggestions for adminisirative improvemaent accepted by the public
authorities; and

« 22 voluntary actions by public authorities as a result of the Ombudsman'’s involvement.

Further details on work undertaken by the Ombudsman to improve administrative praclices and
decision making are included in the section on Improved Public Adminisiration iater in this report.

Primary Focus of Agency Complaints

The majority of complaints are received from seven key areas as shown below.

Allegations received in 2007-08

Other
38%

Education & Training
3%

Planning & infrastructure
A%
Carractive Servicas
Housing & Works 21%
4%

Child Protection
4%

Police T
10% Locat Governmants
16%

This section of the report provides additional information about those key areas that the
Ombudsman’s office deals with regarding complaints. |t focuses on the two that are the source of
the targest number of complaints; correclive services (in particular prisons) and local governments.
it also includes additional information about public housing and works, and public education. These
two sectors have smaller complaint numbers but provide important services to the community.
Each of these four areas gives a good ovarview of the office’s work over the reporting year,
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Even though complaints aboui police comprise 10 per cent of all complaints made to the
Ombudsman, a farge number of these are referred to other sources of assistance, such as the
Corruption and Crime Commission, or involve issues that can be remedied in a Court of Law so the
Ombudsman would generally not investigate such complainis. A significant number of complaints
received related to planning and infrastructure, which serves many functions in the community.
Many complainls about this area can be deal! with through the State Administrative Tribunal or a
Court of Law and the QOmbudsman would not generally investigate such complaints,

Corrective Sarvices

Of the allegations received in 2007-08, 21 per cenl related 1o corrective services, The
Parfiamentary Commissfoner Act 1971 pravides for complainis from people in custody, including
their entittement to be provided with facilites to write to the Ombudsman’s office and send their
letters in speciat envelopes pravided at the prisons. The envelopes are marked ‘confidential’ and
deposited in a locked box for confidential mail. There is no requirement for prisoners to identify
thamselves on the confidential envelopes. This box is separate from other mail that requires
scruliny by prison staff in accordance with the Prisons Act 1981, Prisoners can also make free,
confidential tetephone calls to the Ombudsman’s office.

In January 2008, the Complaints Administration Unit of the Department of Corrective Services
became fully operational. The Unit is responsible for the management of complaints, compliments
and suggeslions from department siaff, aduits in custody, and the public. The complaints system is
callad '"ACCESS', and it provides discrete telephone lines for staff, the public, and prisoners. The
ACCESS 'Custodial’ line anablas prisoners lo make free, confidential calls to ACCESS. The Unit
was established partly in résponse 10 the Ombudsman's and the Inspector of Custodial Services’
concerns that the prisoner grievance system was not suitable for all prisoners, parlicularly
Indigenous prisoners.

The Ombudsman’s office is commilled le continuing to work cooperatively with the Depariment of
Corrective Services and Serco (Acacia Prison) and lo maintaining the office’s relationship with the
Department of Corrective Services’ Complaints Administration Linit.

There were 285 allegations received about correclive services during 2007-08. Of these, 250
related Lo prisons {including 21 relating to Acacia Prison, a private prison run by 8ERCO). Since
2004-05 there has been a decline in the number of complaints aboui prisons, which has continued
this year as shown below. The office has undertaken considerable work with the Department of
Correclive Services in assisting them to develop their internal complaint-handling systems and
providing training to trainee prison officers, and tha decline may be due fo improved practices and
intermal complaint management, partly as a resull of these activities.
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Allegations received about corrective services
Afq

400

nr

300 285

200 -

100 -

2004-08 200506 2006-07 200708

Table 4 shaws the source of allegalions received over the pas! faur reporting years,

 Acacia Prison (Serco) 107 2%% 50 14% 2 om o2 j %

‘(qggszt?;(nf Correclive Services) ] 18 W% 4 1%, 3 1% 5%

Atbany Regional Prison 13 3% 10 3% 32 10% 13 5%
Bandyup Women's Prison 30 6% 20 8% a0 9% 25 9%
Banksia Hill Detention Centre' - ) 0 0% <% 1 <% 1.
Boronia Pre-release Cenlre for Women  © Cpaned 2006 10 3% 2 1% ' N
'Broame Regonal Prgson 2 <% & % 10. : 3% 7 2%
Bunbury Regional Prison 43 3% 6 2% 14 4% 6 o%
CasuatinaPrison 105 21% | 57 16% 48 15% 56 20%
Eastern Goldfields Regional Prison M9 4% 12 3% 3 1% 3 1%
Greenough Reglonal Prison 10. 2% . 9. 2%” 15 . 5% ‘ED. 4%
Hakea Prison ' ' a2 18% 87 : 24% 60 19% 48 ‘l?%

i(ametPrison Farm 9 2% 5 2% 7: 2% 6 2%
' Nyanm Prison 5 1% | Closed
Rangewew Remand Cenire 3 A% 3 . 1% <] 2% 2 .é%
.
5

Roebaurne Prison 2% 6 2% _ 2 % a2 4%
Wooralao Prison Farm 1% 6. 2% § 3% 7 2%
Not allosated to a prison 53 10% 63 . 8% 24 7% 43 15%

TOTAL 494 100% 355 100% 317 100% 285 100%
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Maost prison-related allegations (168) relate o the areas shown in the chart below. There are also
small numbers of complaints about areas such as communications, the prisaner grievance
procedure, food and diet, transport, individual management plans, drug detection, protection,
rehabiitation, prisoner employment and authorised absercesffunerals,

Nature of prison allegations in 2007-08

Health services [ o o T ] 30

B4

Visit [T T

Prison officer conduct coou e

Placement T ST

Prisoner's property | - R R ]

Fasillias and conditions [ 15
Discipling, loss of privileges, charges
Sentencing/parole issues

Security classilication

Educalion courses and laciities

Assault by prison or SERGO officer 7

This year, 265 allegations abou! corrective services were finalised, as shown in Tables § (a) and
{b).

“Allegalions finalisad al lnilial slage

Qul of jurisdiction

Alfernative remedy or right of review 108 42%
Informal resolution of complaint 7 *1%
Withdrawn by complainant on 4%
Referred back to agency 30 . 12%
Further investigation not warranted * 89 38%
Total agllegations Hnalised af initial stage 258 100%

* Includes cases where enguiries were made and assislance provided without lurther investigation,
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Table S (b) < Al

ations fialised by completed invastigation.”

R (e%;_fa_{irox :

 Sustained whofiy or parlly 43%

. Wlihdrawn by compiainan% 0%
Could not be dazermined 0%
Not susiamed 57%
Total allagatmm finalised by complatcé mvestlgatmn . ¥ 100%

Examples of remedial action provided to complainants and action to improve public administration
as a result of recommendations made by the Ombudsman or valurdary action by the Department of
Corrective Services included:

s the development of strategies by the Department of Corractive Services, in conjunction with
the: Disability Services Cammission, to better address the needs of prisonars with intellestuat
disabilities that will benefil the complainant and other prisoners in the future; and

« @ review by the Department of Corrective Services of the predator palicy within prisens to
ensure that prisoners subjected 1o this policy are given clear information about their appeal
rights that will henefit the complainant and other prisoners in the future,

- The Ombudsman's office s able to act as a circuit-breaker in complex cases. An
. sxample is the case of a prisoner who complzined that the agency responsible for
caloulating prison sentences had mcorreclly calculaled their senterzce and @Iigmlmy

’ -_!crparoie o - . L . L

In effect 2he agency mte;preted the prgsonez s seﬂtence to mean one thlng, whlle the Judge believed the
agency had misinterpreled the stalute :

The Ombudsmans oft"ce arrangeci for the agency to seek advice from the State Sullcdws Office. who
confirmed the. -way the agency had calculated the sentence ’i“he agency then mviteci the gudgs o
recor;stder has wews abmst the matter. .

Sol;cztors fcr the prisoner, suppor%eci by comments from 1he sentenczng 1udge, beheved the agemy had
misinterpreted the legislation and the effect on the prisoner's saniance

At this hearing, tha orlginai sentence was sel suda and ihe agency recalculated the prisoners new
sentence in the manner intended by the judge. The end rasult was that although the prisoner's complaint
that the agency. had miscalculated their semence was not upheld they became elrglble for parole twa
years earlier than under the cngmal semence :

This case il.'usfrarss how the cump!amf pmcess rmay resutt in ber‘rems for the comp!amant or amproved '
public adm.'nfsfraimn aven !hough rhe complaint itself is not sustainad :
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Local Government

The locat government sector pravides a diverse range of services to local communities. Many of
these services, including planning and building approvals, communily facilities, parking
enforcement, maintenance of local roads and footpaths and control of animals such as dogs have
the potential to generate complaints. Complaints aboul local governmenis accountad for the
second largest number of complaints received during the year.

During the year, 204 allegations were received abaoul the adminisirative practices of 83 of the 141
local governments that fali within the Ombudsman's jurisdiction.  Overall, allegations about local
governments represented 16 per cent of all allegations received by the office In the reporting
period. The number of allegations received has remained relatively staady over the last four years
as sean below,

Allegations received about Local Government

250 -

203 108 204
200 - o A

173

180 -

100 -

80 -

4004.05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08

Table 6 shows the main sources of allegations in the last four years, showing local governments
that have had 10 or more complainis made about them i 2006-07 or 2007-08.
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“Table 6 Source of allégations réceived about local Governmants -

2007-08°

200807

200605 0200 ! 2

Ng:m_égé:r: :_.A;}ﬁfﬂx' : Numbm :..il.\pprqx; S Numbie 5 Approst - Nureber
R DU vacaived TR raceivet] L Yel T racelved 0 B recelvard v S
Town of Cambridge M e% 3 % 5 3% 4 %
City of Canning a2 2 1% 12 &% 5 3%
City of Cackburn ' 6 4% 6 8% 12 6% 6 a%
Cityof Gosnells 13 8% 23 1% 10 5% 8 4%
" City of Joondalup 8 4% 7 3% 3 % ] A%
City of Melville 3 2% 13 % 9 5% 12 6%
Shire of Murray BT 6% 8 3% P % 1 1%
City of Stitkng 12 7% 18 9% 5 3% 12 6%
City of Swan 4 2% 12 6% 10 5% 19 9%
Shire of Tocdyay o] 0% 1 1% : 14 8% 3 1%
Teown of Vincent 7 4% 4 2% 1 1% 8 4%
Other local governments 97 58% 108 53% 119 S7% 117 57%
TOTAL 173 100% 203 100% 198 100% 204 100%

The largest number of allegations received about local governments (30%) relaled fo
administration and customer services. These include complaint handling, provision of infarmation,
conduct of officers/counciltors, elactions, liability claims, meetings and resumption of praperty,

There were also a large number of allegations (25%) related fo building, development and planning
services, which includes construction and demolition matiers, objeclions to applications and
conditions/refusals of applications.

Local government enforcement actions accounted for 15 per cent of allegalions received. This
relales to actien on unauthorised developmentiuse/uildings, control of animals, enforcement of
development and building condifions, enfarcement of other statules/local laws, fire control, parking
and traffic enforcement,
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Nature of Local Government allegations in 2007-08

Admiristration and customer services [ s e i e 1

Enforcament | oni it 1 3G

Bevelopment approvals

Building approvals
Rating z:“_“:] 16
Envirormental heatth [ ot 15
Planning m 10
Other approvals and licences ' g
Community facilties ' a
Enginesring [::f_j 5

Contracts and properly management i::] 3

This year, 218 local government allegalicns were finalised, as shown in Table 7 (a) and (b) below.

~Mumberof

Oui of jurisdiction - o - . - 2 ._ . .1%.
Alternative remedy or right of review 38 ' 2%;%
Informal resolution of complaint . 5 : o 4%.
Withdrawn by complainant " 7%
Referrad back to agenty 12 9%
Further investigalion not warranted * G5 50%
Total allegations finatised at initial stage 1314 100%

* Includes cases where enquiries were made and assistance provided without further investigation.
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” 'é}iion_s_ _'f'in_'_aﬁ_s;éd by compleled i_;i_v_ésiigal_i_cﬁ.'f-.__.' S

% (gég&pfé:e:'}” .

Gl T R T e e s TR allegations: g
s@ﬁgﬁéd _“}hg".y_ur par.liy“ R R TR ST R i ANPGRS 18 s
Withdrawn by complainant 3 3%
Coutd not be determined 4 5%
Not sustained _ 62 %
Total allegations finalised by completed investigation B7 100%

Remediat action provided to complainants as a resuit of recommendations made by the
Ombudsman or voluntary action by the local government for matters finalised in 2007-08 is shawn
in Table 8. In 2007-08 there were 84 remedial actions that benefited the complainant, compared
with 53 in 2006-07.

A high proportion of the ailegations finalised resulled in assistance being provided to the
complainant by way of an explanation about the actions of the local government complained ahaut
andfor the basis of the reasons for those actions.

- Table's - Remedial action of direct benefit to complainan

:l\_fu:lrllgéf of d it

Abgﬂgéy ven RS P e N SR i RN e | B 2.
Explanation provided * _ ' 60
Acﬁonldecis!on expedited or reversal or variation of decision : ' '1
Monetary charge reduced, withdrawn or refunded or act of grace paymém o 1
Other assistance ' ' ' 2
Direct benefil for complainant &4

* This includes explanations provided by the Ombudsman.

* This includes changes o law, praclice or procedure,

Examples of remedial action provided to complainants and action taken to improve public
administration as a result of recommendations made by the Ombudsman or veluptary action by the
local government included:

»  Parking infringements issued to a complainant were withdrawn following negotiation with the
local government. White there was no conclusive evidence of problems in the administrative
praciices of the local gavernment, it recognised that it was reasonabie for this to occur in the
circumstances;
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The implementation of a number of changes to improve communication about actions
impacting on a property owner when reduction burns on property are planned and to provide
an opportunity for the complainant to discuss their concerns personally with the local
government,

A raview of procedures concerning the authorisation of building work and some remedial work
lo rastore the property affectad was directed by the local government;

In the case of erecled signage thal impacied on the complainant's view from his home,
although the sighage was found to be appropriate in the circumstances, the local government
agreed that, in the fulure, it would considar informing local residents of plans to erect signage;
and

A review of communication processes in regards to the handling of comiplaints by a local
gavernment.

The owners of two properlies wrote lo & local government complaining about
overlogking and privaty issues resulling from construction of a house an an
adjorning properly.

Having received no reply or explanation from the Ioe‘:al government after threé manths, the owners

individuaily complained o the Ombudsman. Tm property ownets camplaxned that the local governmen:

had not taken adequate steps to: - )

«  ensure planning andfor building app!icatrcn and appmvals pmnesses had been fol Iuwed

« consuit affected adjoining nelghbours; Co

+  properly ass&ss the plans and their effect on the adjcrnmg pmpertres and S

. adequately superwse ihe development or recngnrse unauthorgsed wofks wera pmceeding _

in response to the (}mbudsmans enquirres, the tocal government recognised the need fo improve its

pwcedures for deating with planning and buiiding matters and advrsed on a number of rmtratfves lo
address ssues iden%rf“ed by this case, These mcluderﬁ . .

. encoursgrng cr,msultaiion between developers and nerghbcmrsr

s Introducing new procedures for deal;ng w;l§1 burldfng plans mciudrng rmp!amentrng site \IlSll checklrs%s
for application assessmen% ané . .

. |ntroducing new procedures for deallng with engmeenng certlf:catrarr of ceﬂam burldlng works

The local guvernmem also recegn:sed the need 1o improve its complarnt hand ing proceduras and advised
that, in fulure, iiwuuld requir@ that alt writien comp ainls be responded to Wilhiﬂ 10 days of receipt ’

The Chief Execuirve Offrcer mvrted the r:;amplaiﬂanls 10 meet him o discuss lhese Initiatives and any other
matiers thay wished to raise concerning the adromrng developmem The Ombudsman 3 offrce conardered
this was a reasonable course c¥ action. s ol . =

This cose highlights how camplamtﬁ provide opportunities for pubfrc auuron'ties to revrew their processes
and procedures and make improvements for the fulure, . : . :
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Fublic Housing

The Department of Housing and Works provides a diverse range of services o the community.
These include public and community housing, Indigenous and regional housing, Keystart home
leans, property sales, major governmend projects, capital works projects and property and facilities
maintenance and services. Over the lasl lhree years, there has been a decline in complaints about
housing and works, which now comprise 4 per cent of allegations received by the Ombudsman.

In 2007-08, there were 46 complaints received aboul the Department of Housing and Works,
invalving 48 allegations, the lowest number in the last four years. The majority of complaints about
the Department are handled by its internal appeals process and only a small proporien come to
the Ombudsman's office. Il may be that more complainis are being resolved o the salisfaction of
its tenants through that process, thereby reducing the need fo complain 1o this office.

Allegations received are shown below.
Allegations received about Housing and Works

100 -

20

80 -

60 -

4 -

20 -

2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08

While the overall number of complaints has decreased in the past year, the range of issues
complained aboul is broadly similar to pravious years. Most allegations (86%) concarned the
rental operations program of the Department. Of these, the largest number of allegations (31% of
all allegations} related to the property allocation and transfer process. A further 10 per cent
invoived property condition and maintenance issues,

Page 40



Repord on Goerotions

Nature of Housing and Works allegations in 2007-08

Rental - Property allocations and transfers | it oot o nn 1B

Rental - Behaviour of tanantsfevictions

Rentat - Property condition and maintenance
Rental - Rentalibond assistance :::::]5
Rental - Debl repayments :::] 2
Rendal - Tenand iability ':_f":] 2
Rentat - Other m 8
Administeation "::]2
Property purchase .::]1

Other |04

Tables @ (a) and (b) show the outcome of complainis finalised during the reporting pariod. As with
tast year, a higher number of allegations (65) were finalised in 200708 than were received {49).

Tabie 0 {8} - Allegations finalised al inifal slage

o Number.of 5
O R R : i B Rt callegations
Out of jurisdiction o

Alternative remedy or right of review 10

Informal resolution of complaint 3 %
Withdrawn by complainant 1 2%
Referred back te agency 2 5%
Further investigation not warcanted * 28 62%
Total allegations finalised at inliial atage 42 100%

&

Includes cases where enquiries were made and assistance provided without further investigation.
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_ Atlégalia}{é'fa‘;ﬁ'a_liéés'l' ty 'sé'r'r:ipiéi_éc'l' fvestigation -5

Nureber of ©© 0
i ollegations. o (PRIOK)

Sustained wholly or partly 30%

4
Withdrawn by comp.laiﬂant 4] 0%
Could not be determined 0 0%
Not sustained . 9 T0%
Total allegations finalised by completed investigation ' 13 100%

Remedial action provided to complainanis as a resuit of recommendations made by the
Ombudsman or votuntary action by the Department of Housing and Works for matters finalised in
2007-08 is shown in Table 10. In 2007-08 there were nine remedial actions that benefited the
complainant compared with 10 in 2006-07.

ot ot bt o complainant -

Humbér of ag

Apology given 1

Actien/decision expedited or reversal or variation of decision : 1
Ménétary charge r.ecﬁuced. wilhdrawﬁ or refunded ﬁr a.ct of g#ace éayment . 4
Cther .assist..ance * 3
.Direct. he.n@;!it .for cémpléénant. . : 9

* Other assistance included ehanges to law, praclice or procedure.

Examples of remedial action provided to complainanis and aclion taken to improve public
administration as a result of recommendations made by the Qmbudsman or valuntary action by the
Bepartment of Housing and Works included:

« A lenant compizined that there was outstanding maintenance of a housing and works
property he was renting and that this was impacting on his health. His attempts to have the
problem dealt with by the Department of Housing and Works had not resolved the problem.
The investigation discovered that the Depariment of Housing and Works thought a contraclor
engaged by the department had dealt wilh the issues but this was not the case. Despite
efforts made by the Department of Mousing and Works to resolve the issues, the dispute
became protracted. Following intervention by the Ombudsman, the maintenance issues were
expadited,
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A tenant of properly for over 15 years was moving to private rental.  The Depariment of
Housing and Warks deemed the tenant liable for costs to remove and replace items thal they
deemed to be in a state of disrepair or migsing. The liability was disputed by the tenant. An
investigation revealed that previous inspections of the properly had not identified any issues
with the items and there was no evidence that the items were present when the tenant moved
inte the property or at any other time. The Department of Housing and Works waived all
tenant liabilily and refunded the bond money due to the tenang;

A tenant moved into a property and the floor tiles were not sealed as they should have been
and became dirty and marked. When the tenant vacated the properly, aitempts to clean the
floor made it worse, The fenant was deemed lable for the damage and their bond money
was withheld. After intervention by the Ombudsman, the tenant's liability was quashed and
the bond maney was refunded;

Another tenant moved into emergency housing that was poorly maintained and was given an
undertaking that it would be improved, The work was nol done and when he vacaled the
property, he was heid liable for the maintenance issues. Following interverdion by the
Ombudsman, an apology was issued by the Department of Housing and Warks and a rebate
credited o the tenant's current rental acsount to repay the money taken from his bond for the
original tenancy; and

As a resull of some of thess complaints and & review of its processes, the Department of
Housing and Works voluntarily implemented changes 1o its administrative practices and the
functions of some key staff, to ensure pre-vacation inspeclions are carried oul with the tenant
present go that these kinds of disputes can be deall with at that time.

A public housing tenant and her daughler who had a disability were relocated while
- their home was refurbished. ' They understood they would be refurning to the property
‘after the refurbishment work was sompleted. During this pericd, the tenant passed
away, . -Although the daughter had ‘lived “all her ‘life with her mother and had
_comrabu%ed 1o the rent smce she was 16, she was not the iegal lenant,

During the refurblshmem the Gouernment agency res;)onsibls Tor the proper{y decided that it was nol
financially viable to retain the prapery for rental purposes as the refurbishment costs had far exceeded the
estimates oblained. Jt decided o sell the property, which upsel the daughter, who wanted to return lo her
original home. " As she was no% the Iegal tenant, she was cancerned about whers she would | five, .

Durmg ihe Ombudsmans enquines, £he agency acknow]edged the |mpacl on the daughter o! nol bemg
aligible 1o “inherit’ her mother's’ R)fmer tenancy and it advised that, as along {erm househald member of the
tenancy, il would assist her with some rental accommedation, It agreed to allow the daughtef to remair in
the property to which she and her mother had beer relocaled Alterahnns were made tm lhe pmpérty %o
make it suitable for lhe daughters long 2erm ﬂeeds : : Gl : ) :

To avaid similar sntuatans aceurring in future and tn ensure tenants are mada aware thaz it may nol be
poss;ble for them 10 relurh to their former home following a refurbishment progran, the agency advised that
it would ensure information was -provided o fenants. . This would ‘make %hem aware mat refurbished
praperiie& may ba sold and allernative accommodatiun found for the tenant, - :

_.Tms case b;ghhghts the méed to ansune:» that public atilhiorifas keop fherr cusfomers mformed about
‘processes which impact upon them, - It also highlights how an agency fook action to assist someone
affected hy a decision it mado, and fo review and refine its prosedures to avold similar problems oocurring.
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Public Educalion Seclor

The public education sector includes the Department of Education and Training (including
individual schools), the Department of Education Services, the Gurriculum Council, Technical and
Further Education (TAFE) colleges and public universities.

During the year §2 allegations were received and & total of 95 allegations were finalised. There has
been a significant increase in complaints about public education this year as shown in the chart
below. This may be as a result of the introduction of a new National Code of Practice for
Registration Authorities and Providers of Education and Training for Overseas Students 2007,
which gives international siudents the right of appeal to an external and independent body, such as
the Ombudsman, if their internal appeals were unsuccessfui at schoel or university level. Action to
promote the new code is likely to raise awareness about the role of the Ombudsman's office,
Further detgils about the new code are included fater in this report.

Allegations received about Public Education

104

80 -

60 -

40 -

20 4

2005-06 2006-07 2007-08

Table 11 shows details of aliegations received during the year compared with the previous two
years, together with the institutions complained about.

o 1 Atlogations recelvad abaut publis ducati

Department of Education and Training
(a¢ministration and individual schools)

Curriculﬁm Councit : 3 G 1
Central TAFE 4 4 6
Central West Coliege of TAFE 1 0 0
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Table 11 - Allagations raceived about public education o
S Y Goosos

200607

I e e T e T reaived T renhived
.Chailen.ger TA?.E o . . 0 . - 2 . 0.
Kimberley TAFE 0 0 1
Pilbara TAFE 1 0 0
Swan TAFE 0 0 1
West Coast TAFE 0 0 {
Total TAFE ] [ 8
Curltin University 5 41 7
Edith Cowan Universily 8 3 13
Murdech University 7 4 g
Universily of Western Australia 10 4 4
Total Public Universities 30 22 30
TOTAL PUBLIC EQUCATION 73 G0 82

Allegalions aboul public education relate 1o the three main areas of staff employment, enrolment
fees and charges, and academic assessment. The ‘other’ allegation category includes allegations
such as the quality of teaching and organisation of courses and student discipline.

Nature of Public Education allegations in 2007-08

2%

Stafl employment izsues

Enroimentffessieiargas | i i i i |21%
Academic Assesement | iR 5:'--!19%
Other [ L0 e B e gy
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Tables 12 (a) and {b) show the outcome of complaints finalised during 2007-08. As with last year,
a higher number of allegations (95) were finalised in 2007-08 than were received (82).

: TabEa 1z (a;w A_l'lgs;gaii'anis_' fiﬁa_iism)_‘_ a.t__ihiii:}}'ﬁ sfégé' : B

% Musmber of -

L ST S _ T allegations "%:_(_?_p?@f}'

..Gut.o.f.J:urisdic.:.l.io.r;.: - o o - . 5 S 9%
Alternative .ra.medy or right of review 18 32%

' inforﬁél resc.lutian.of com;ilairit ' . g . 0%
W;’tﬁdr.a.w;n. by.cor.npla.inén.t . : 2 4%

. Referred Bacﬁ to ageﬁcy 7 12%
Further investigatio.n not wérramed * 24 43%
Total allegations finalised at initial stage 56 100%

* Includes cases where enquiries were made and assistance provided without further invesiigation,

Table 12 (b) < Al

egations finalised by compleled investigation 1

% (approx) -

Sustained whaoily or partly

_ T
Withdrawr by &omplaiﬁan! . . 1 28%
Could not be detefmiﬁed : D 0%
Not sustained . : 13 33%
Total allegations finalised by completed investigation 39 100%

Remedial action provided to complainants as a result of recommendations made by the
Ombudsman or voluntary action by the agencies are shown in Table 13. It is possible for a
complainant to receive more than one form of assistance with respect to the one allegation. In
2007-08, there were 39 remedial actions that benefited the complainant compared to 23 in 2006-
07.
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Table 13 < Remedial action of dirgct benefil Lo complainant -

Murshar of aciions®

Explanation provided * 32

Action/decision expedited or reversal or variation of decision 2
Monetary charge reduced, withdrawn or refunded or act of grace payment 2
Other assistance 3
Dirscd benefit for complainant 38

* Includes explanations provided by the Ombudsman.

Examples of remedial action provided to complainants and aclion laken to improve public
administration as a resulf of recommendations made by the Ombudsman or veluntary action by the
education authority included:

s A university agreed fo have a student's appeal against academic assessment reheard by &
committee consisting of new mambers and to ensure that procedurat faimess principles were
applied;

o |n view of the particular circumstances of the case, a university agreed fo reimburse a student
for any demonstrated loss of earnings and other reasonabie costs associated with undertaking
a supplementary practicum;

s A university agreed to the conditional re-enrolment of a student who had been terminated fram
a course;

o The Curriculum GCouncil reissued certificates o a student in the name he had changed to under
the Change of Name Regulations;

» A universily revised its instructions fo staff about student practicums, reinforcing the naed for
them 1 record reasons for assessmant decisions including the criteria used. In addition it
agreed to provide training about procedural fairness principles to persons invelved with
academic assessment appeal commitlees,

» A universily revised ils appeal against gcademic assessment procedures 1o require that
students be given detailed reagons for decisions; and

« A university agreed {o review ils systern for student appeals against academic processes to
allow siudents to make further submissions lo the appeal committee where special
cireumstances apply, for instance, where new information is provided to the Committee during
the appeal process that the student has not had the oppartunily (o respond lo.
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A teacher complained that a public authorily was seeking the full residual value for
the late return of a notebook computer under the Notebooks for Teachers Program.
The teacher claimed permission had been sought and received 1o retain the notebook
for an additional month during the teacher's transfer to a new location. The public
authorily disputed the teacher's claim, . .

The public authaority maintained that, in signing the ‘Notebook Reglstra%lon Fcrm 2he teacher enlered mto a
binding contract and effectively agraed to the terms and conditions of the Program.. . Teachers were
contractually obligated to return the notebooks at the third anniversary of their delivery, Program
participants had been seni detailed written advice and instructionss, in advance, regarding the need to return
notebooks and the potential consequences should they fail to do so. Howevaer, the view of the Ombudsman
was that the information did not adequately convey the requirement for the notebooks fo be returned no
later than the anniversary date, or the consequences of hawng to pay lhe resuﬁuas value and penal ues
shoulci it he returned after the final deadline. :

The agency acknawledged that there were a number of shortcumzngs in the initial agreement However, in
May 2007, the original agreements ‘ended and all participants were then covered under a new, more
comprehensive set of ferms and conditions. -In!crmation provided on ihe websi!e was amended to outline
the financial impacts for missed collections, L ;

The Ombudsman's uffice considered there was no reason to hetlave that 1he teachar was actmg in ulher
than good faith in their claims and, given the disparity of accounts and the absence of gvidence to the
contrary, was not persuaded that the feacher’s claim should be completely disregarded. it did not seem
reasonable for the teacher to have to bear the full cost of the pay-oul of the residual value of the notebook
computer as well as the financier's charges. The Ombudsman's office suggested the public authority
consider waiving half the amount charged for lhe Iaze return of the nr}lebook compule{ and the publc
authonly accepled this suggestion: - - : : :

This case study hfghhghts the raqurrement for crear torms and condrfrons and rha communrcaffon of those
fo all refevant parties. The case study also shows how the Ombudsman's office’s recommendatmns can
help achleve a reasanable outcome for the complainant and the public authorily.
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Overseas/internafion] Studenis

A new National Code of Practice for Registration Authorities and Providers of Education and
Training to Overseas Students 2007 came inlo effect on 1 July 2007, The new Code gives
international students the right of appeal 1o an exiernal and independent body, such as the
Ombudsman, if their internal appeals were unsuscessful at school or universily levei,

Around 19,000 overseas sludents are currently enrolled at institulions that provide government
educalion services {0 overseas students, An inlernational studeryt visa holder can no longer be
reportad to immigration authorities by their educational institution until the student has been given
the opportunity to access the external appeals process.

This new jurisdiction has seen the Ombudsman working closely with public universities in Perlh to
ensure a consistent inlerpretation of the Cade, During the year, lhe Ombudsman's office dealt
with nine appeals from infernational university students. As a result of suggestions made, the
universities have improved their intermnal appeals processes and complaint handling procedures.

These improvemants include:

+ changing wording on standard letters lo make them easter for infernational students to
understand;

e ensuring iernalionatl students know of their right to a supporl person during an appeal
« documenting fully the reasons for deciding appeals; and
« making ceriain thal the reasons for decisions reflect universily policies.

Processes have been refined within the Ombudsman’s office to ensure international sludent
compiainis are handled effliciently due to the implications for the studant's visa status,

An overseas student complained that a university had unreasonably dismissed their
appeat against termination of their enrolment in a Bachelor degree.  This had
significant implications for retaining their student visa. The student also somplained
that the university did nol notify them thal their application for a deferred examination
due {o illngss had been denied, and that they had not been given the opportunity to
appeat that decision before termination was considered.

The investigation confirmed that no written nedification had been sent to the student advising them that thelr
apphcation for a deferred examination had been denied, giving reasons for 1hat declsion or oullining the
precedure should they wish 1o appeal that decision. However, despite this administrative shortcoming, the
Ombudsman's office did not balieva that this matter was crucial to the final cutcome. This was because the
policy in place al the time required students (o have submitted all the required assignmenls for the course
up to the time sickness bad ccourred. The complainant had not met this requirement,

The Ombudsman's office was satisfied that:

+ the university had made its decision on the appeal againsl {ermination based on the student's
academic record and its assessmery of the reasons and circumstances set outin the appeal; and

o ihe decision was in keeping with its politles on acadensc status and grading of resuits.

Although the conclusions were of no direct assistanice fo the complainant, this complainf raised the general
issue of providing students with “reasons for decisions”. After rafsing thase concerns with the universily, it
agreed that it nesded fo address the issue of providing students with reasons for decisions and advised that
its policy and procedures ware being re-wrilten to achieve this, This case study is an example of an issue
dealt with under the new National Code of Practice.

Poge 49



Repoit on Opeations

Requests for Review

The Ombudsman’s office is committed to providing complainants with a service that reflects best
praciice administration. Staff always give reasons for a decision and handle requests for review of
a decision in a fair, timely and professional manner. This includes decisicns not to investigate a
complaint or to discontinue an investigation, as well as conclusions reached after an investigation,

If a complainant requests a review, the office treats this as opportunity to identify whether there are
any weaknesses in the complaint systems. |f problems are found with the investigative and
decision-making process or with the way decisions have been communicated, steps are taken to
corract them and o improve service delivery. A review heips the office salisfy itself that staff have
acted fairly and reasonably in dealing with the complaint.

As reviewing a decision can require substaniial resources, a decision is only reviewed once.
Unless there are special circumnstances, requests for review will oniy be considered up to 12
months afler the date of the initial decision.

Reviews are not conducted by the staff member who handled the original complaint. The reviewer
will be more senior or 2 peer and will have had no previous invoivemenf with the case.

The reviewer generally considers all documents in the case and may make further enguiries. in
some cases, following & review, the original decision may be changed or the case re-opened and
same further action taken.

Twelve complaint reviews were conducted this year, or one per cent of the total number of
cormnplaints received.
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Improved Public Administration

There are a number of ways in which the Ombudsman achieves outcomes that result in
improvements to public administration. These are:

« investigation of complaints made to the Ombudsman;

« own motion investigations - these usually occur where the Ombudsman initiates an
investigation into a systemic issue identified as a resulf of a number of complaints received
about & parlicular issue or where & concern about a parlicular issue is identified even though
complaints may have net been received;

o inspections of prisons conducted in conjunction with the Inspector of Custadial Services; and

s other mechanisms such as through assistance, education and training undertaken by the
Ombudsman about good decision-making and practices.

Investigation of Complaints

Investigations undertaken by the office are a key mechanism through which administrative
improvaments are achieved. |n a number of cases, the Ombudsman makes recommendations or
suggestions lo an agency for improvements {o processes or procedures as a resuit of
shortcemings identified during the office’s enquiries, Some improvemenls occur because an
agency voluntarily initiates a review of its processes and procedures where, as a resull of the
Ombudsman's enguiries, it realises there were gaps in ils service delivery that should be
addressed. There were 34 improvements to the practices and procedures of pubiic autharities this
year as a resull of recommendations or suggestions made by the Ombudsman. I addition, there
wers 22 instances where public authorities voluntarily initiated changes to praclices or procedures,
or initiated training for slaff, as a resull of complaints being made 1o the Ombudsman.

A texibook writer and pubiisher complained about the way the autherily responsible
for setting the Tertiary Entrance Examination (TEE) Currcufurn intraduced changes
to the syllabus of & TEE subject. The wriler claimed that the authority's approach
made it difficult to understand the nature of the chianges, which resulied in a waste of
many %'iours amsndlng his texlbcoks in ways that were unnecessary.

The Ombudsman’s investigation revealed that the process used to amend subject syllabuses included
conguliation with a committee made up of representatives from the secondary and post secondary sector
as well as industry groups with expertise in the fleld. For this reason the Ombudsman did not consider that
it was nacessary to consult individuatly with texibook wiiters,

However, the Ombudsman's office was concerned thal there was polential for commitlee members who
may also be textbook writers to cblain information that gave them an unfair commercial advantage over
other texthbook writers, For lhls reasan, i{ Wik suggested that ihe aulhorlty review ils ccnfimt of iInterest
policy. ; .

The Ombudsman's investigation also revealed that conflicling advice haet been provided to the textbook
writer on a number of occasions and that there were inadequacies in the process for ensuring that subject
curriciium  information was error free and unambiguous at the beginning of the school year. The
Ombudsman suggested a review of the authorily's processes o help reduce the possibility of such
preblems recurring, including establishing ways of providing iexibook writers W|th tlmely and accurate
advice about changes to syllabuses, These suggest:ons were acceptecﬁ

This case shidy is an examp.'e of how the making ofa complaint to the Ombudsman gan result in chang@s
{¢ practices and procedures following a suggestion made by the Ombudsman's office.
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In 2007-08, the Ombudsman's office reviewed whether recommendations and suggestions made
by the Ombudsman over a six year period had bgen implemented by public authorities. The
outcome was that Ombudsman recommendations and suggestions had been implemented in 97
per cent of cases. The review showed lhat action taken by public authorities to assist

complainants inc%l_Jded expediting action, reducing or refunding fees and charges, explaining
reasons for decisions, making an apology or providing compensation payments.

Actions taken to improve fuiure administrative practices inciuded changes 1o arganisational policies
and procedures, staff training and improved record keeping.

Own Mofion invesligations

The office finalised one own motion invesligation during the year and followed up on the
implementation of recemmendaticns on another. The details are outlined below.

An investigation inta the Depariment of Corrective Services’ prisoner complaints system (grievance
process) for Indigenous prisoners was completed in September 2007, The investigation focused
on Broome Prison. This is an adult prisen with a high proportion of Indigenous people, At the time
of the investigation, 95 per cent of prisoners were Indigenous peaple.

The investigation involved an assassment of the grievance process against the criteria refating to
accessibility, fairness, efficiency, and accountability,

A number of observations were made about the administration of the grievance process during the
investigation, which were passed on to the Department to assist it in impiementing improvements
to its system and in further refining its compiaints process.

In particular, it was observed that there was a low participation rale amangst indigenous prisoners
using the grievance process. Information about the literacy and numeracy skills of prisoners at
Broome indicated that a number of prisoners wouid have difficully accessing the written based
system. A number of suggestions 1o overcome this accessibility barrier were made to the
Department. It was also suggested that the Department consider renaming the grievance system
as the term may not be contextual to the indigenous culture. For example, Indigencus prisoners
befleved grievances were related to grieving for deceased relatives. Suggestions were alse made
about the timeliness arkl accountabllity framework for dealing with grievances.

In November 2007, the Ombudsman published the Progress Report on the Implementation of the
Ombudsman’s Recommaendaltions by the Department of Education and Training. This followed an
own motion investigation in response to a number of complaints about the Department’s approach
to complaints management. The report of the investigation, published in November 2006, identified
a number of systemic issues and five recommendations were made.

The Progress Repor noted that the Depariment had made positive progress towards impraving its
complaints management processes and has commenced a comprehensive reform of its complaints
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handling processes that will involve changes to policies, procedurss and practices.  The
Department has made a commitment to fully implement the recommendations and report back to
the Ombudsman by the end of September 2008, The Ombudsman's office will review the
Deparimeni’s progress in implementing changes to its complaints management process during the
2008-09 year.

Assistance, Educalion and Training

impravements to pubfic administration can be achieved through assistance, education and training
programs.  The office provides high level stralegic advise to public authorilies on their
administrative practices,

During the financial year, Ombudsman staffl worked with fwo public authorifies that are in the
process of improving their complaing handiing systermns. These ware the Deapartment of Corrective
Services and the Deparimeant for Child Protection.

The work with the Department of Corrective Services arose following two investigations initiated by
the Ombudsman in 2008 and 2007 into the Department’s prisoner complaints systerm (grievance
syslem) and a recommendation in the report Inquiry info the Management of Offenders in Custody
and in the Community, by the Hon Denis Mahoney AO QG in November 2005, The Ombudsman’s
office monitored and supported the Depariment in the development of its new complaints handiing
system (ACCESS) lo improve the accessibilily, efficiency, accountability and responsiveness of the
system for prisoners, including Indigenous prisoners. The new complaints management system for
prisoners has been operational since January 2008,

Given tha significant number of enguiries and complaints made to the Ombudsman’s office by
prisoners, consideration will be given to & further review of complaint handling services in the
Department after the new system has been operational for a reasonable period.

The work with the Department for Child Protection arose following a recommendation in the
independent review of the former Department for Community Development {Review of fhe
Cepartment  for Community Development, Prudence Ford, January 2007) Here, the
Ombudsman's office menitored and supporied the development of a new Three Tier Complainis
Managemeni System by the new depariment. The Department for Child Proleclion's new
complaints management systern has been operational since March 2008.

The Ombudsman joined with the Department of Child Protection and the Corruption ard Crime
Commissian to provide a seminar lo the new Execulive and senior managers of the department on
complaints handling and the new Depariment for Child Protection complainls management system
and the role of the Ombudsman and the Corrupticn and Crime Commission.

The Ombudsman alse pariicipaied in the production of a DVD based on this seminar to be used in
the training and development of the depariment's staff across the Slate.

In gach_of these inittalives, Ombudsman staff have provided commentl on complainis systems
development at a broad strategic level, rather than by detailed inpul imo policies and procedures.
However, it has also been imporlant o consider the interface belweesn ihese new Department
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systems for internal complaint handling and the Ombudsman's management of complaints and
enquiries 1o the Omaudsman's office about both Departments.

Monitoring and ;é\.;iaw_of the day-lo-day interface between the Ombudsman's complaint teams and
each Department is engoing.

New working arrangements have been developed between the Ombudsman's office and the

Department of Corrective Services to ensure the effective and timely management of enquiries and

complaints made to' the Ombudsman. The Ombudsman's office assisted the Depariment in

developing a_tel_ep?ione script to assisi prisoners using the prisoner complaints telephone hotline to

the Ombudsman if they did not wish to use ACCESS, The office is commilted to working

cooperatively with the Department and maintaining its relationship with the Depariment's
Complaihis Administration Unit in relation to the progress of ACCESS.

A warking arrangement was negofiated and agreed belween the Director General of the
Department for Child Pratection and the Ombudsman to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of
responses to enquiries and complainis made te the Ombudsman about the Department.

The Ombudsman's office continued to build on its initiative of training prison officers by providing
awareness sessions to all new trainee prison officers as part of their induction training. Staff talked
to the trainges about the processes for dealing with prisonar complaints and outlined the sort of
grievances that should be capable of being rasolved at the local prison level,

Prison Inspeciions

In 2007-08, Ombudsman stafl visited Casuarina Prison and Rangeview Remand Centre in
canjunctien with inspections by the Office of the Inspector of Custadial Services.

The focus of the Casuarina inspection was the effectiveness of the prisoner grievance process and
canfidential mail system. Ombudaman siaff met with peer support prisoners and with staff who
process grievances. The inspection report on these systems included a number of suggestions for
improvement, which were accepted.

Rangeview Remand Cenire caters for juveniie male and female detainees from all areas of the
State. This was the Ombudsman'’s first inspection of Rangeview, and the focus was on the internat
complaints handiing procedures, confidential mail system, and the detainess’ knowledge of
external avenues of complaint, such as the Ombudsman,

In addition 1o the inspeciion of Rangeview, the Ombudsman’s office was involved throughout the
year in inter-agency meetings to discuss the growing juvenile remand population.

The detainees al Rangeview appeared to be generally satisfied with their treatment and they do
not appear to use the external complaint mechanisms very often (perhaps because the average
length of stay is 17 days). :

The report on the Rangeview inspection included a number of suggestions for improvernent. "The
Department of Corrective Services supported all of the suggestions, with the majority %_mplemented
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across both juvenile custodial facilities - Rangeview Remand Cenlre and Banksia Hill Detention
Centre - by February 2008. Among other things, the suggestions wili resull in improved access to
the Ombudsman’s office for young people in custody. The Ombudsman's office will conlinue to
work collaboratively with the Office of the Inspector of Custodial Services in dealing with prison
matlers.

Adminishralive improvemeni Team

Following a strategic planning exercise in 2007 and implementation of a new structure in March
2008, a new adminisirative improvement team was established to enable the office 1o take a
strenger and more strategic approach lo improving public administralion at the systemic level, A
new Asgsistant Ombudsman jeined the office in June 2008 to lead the team that will have
responsibility for activities designed to improve decision-making and prastices in public authoritiss
under the Ombudsman's jurisdiction. This may include:

s major invesligations initiated by the Ombudsman,
s provision of advice to public authorities,
+  audits of public authority practices; and

» the development of resource materials whose primary purpose is to improve administration,

The team will also have responsibility for monitoring compliance by the Corruplion and Crime
Commission and Wasterns Australia Police with telecommunications intercept legislation.

Strategic planning to identify key issues and themes for improving administration across the public
sector will be undertaken early in the 2008-09 financial year. A research paper cutiining the
approaches used by Ombudsmen in other States in Australia and the Commonweatth Cmbudsman
has been produced to assist this stralegic planning exercise.

Besource fMolerial

The Ombudsman's office publishes a range of brochures, guides and fact sheets to assist pubiic
authorities imprave their adminisirgtive practices and procedures. These cover procedural
fairness, good record keeping, guidelines for conducting administrative investigations and
providing redress. Publications can be downloaded from the office’s wabsite at
www.ombudsman.wa.gov.au or requests for hard copy publications can be made {o the office. A
ful list of current publications is listed in Appendix 2.
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Other Fuﬁ¢iions of the Ombudsman

Public Interest Disclosures

The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 identifies the Ombudsman as one of the authorities to
whom an appropriate disclosure of ‘public interest information’ may be made. Discicsures are
handled by the office's nominated Public Interest Disclasure officer and each malter is assessed to
determine whether it is an appropriate disclosure that requires investigation, having regard to
relevant guidelings published by the Office of the Public Sector Standards Cemmissioner and the
provisions of R Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003.

The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 does not grant any additional or investigative powers to an
authd;ify receiving a disclosure and investigations are coenducted using the powers available under
the Parliamenlary Commissioner Act 1971. However, access to the files relating to PID
investigations within the office is restricted because the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003
imposes stricter confidentiality provisions and provides specific penalties for the release of
infarmation thal might identify the discloser or any persons who may be the subject of a disclosure.

Duting the year, the Ombudsman's office completed the invesligation of one disclosure carried
over from the previous year and received one other. As required under the Public interest
Disciosure Act 2003 the office reported the number of disclosures received and the cutcome of any
investigation to the Office of the Public Sector Standards Commissicner. OQuicomes resulling in
changes 1o agency practices and procedures are also inciuded in the office’s annual report
statistics withoul identifying that they were the result of a particular public interast disclosure.

Audils of Telecommunication Infercepis

The Telecommunications (Interception} Western Australia Act 1996, the Telecommunications
(Interception) Westlern Australia Regufations 1996, the Commonwealth Telecommunications
(Interception) Act 1979 and the Corruption and Crime Commission Act 2003 permit certain
designated 'eligihle autharities’ to carry out strictly regulated telecommunication interceplions.  In
this State, the Western: Australia Palice and the Corrupticn and Crime Commission are the eligible
authorities.

Under the Regulations, the Ombudsman is appoinied as the Principal Inspector 1o audit the
interceptian activities of the Western Ausiralia Police and the Corruption and Crime Commission to
ensure they are meeting their legisiative requirements and carrying oul the interceptions lawfully.
The Ombudsman must inspect the telecommunications interception records of the Western
Australia Police and the Carruption and Crime Commission at least twice a year and then report on
the outcome to the relevant ministers within three months of the end of the financial year. The
report on the Western Australia Police is sert to the Commissioner of Police and the Stale and
Federal Ministers for Police and the report an the Corruption and Crime Commission is provided to
the State Allorney General, lhe Federal Attorney General and the Corruption and Crime
Commissioner,

Ombudsman staff undertook 10 inspections for warrants issued during 2007-08, 301 warrants
were examined in 2007-08.
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Stole Becords Commission

The Ombudsman is a mamber of the State Records Commission, which was established in July
2001 under the State Records Act 2000, The Commission monitors the operation of, and
compliance with, 1he legistation, monitors record keeping compliance by government biodies and
makes enquiries into alleged breaches of the legislation. The Commission reporis direct to
Parliament and submits a separale annual report {o Parliament,

The Ombudsman participated in five meetings of the Commission during the financial year.
Terrorsm

The Ombudsman can receive complaints from a person defained under the Terrorism
(Preventative Detention} Acf 20006, about administrative matters connected with his or her
dejention. There were no complaints received in this category during the year.

Indion Coean Tenitofes

Under the service delivery arrangement between the State Ombudsiman and the Commonwealth
Gavernment, the Ombudsman handles complaints from residents of the Indian Ocean Territories
{Christmas and Cocos (Keeling) islands) about public authorities in the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction
that operale in the Territories at the Commonwealth’s request. The Ombudsman handled one
complaint during 2007-08. '

Energy Ombudsmaon Funclion

The functions of the Energy Ombudsman are in addition to, and separate from, the Western
Australian Ombudsman’s rote. The Parliamentary Commissioner Act 1877 was amended in 2003
and 2004 {o enable the Western Australian Ombudsman to serve in this role and allow staff of the
office o provide assistance in dealing with complainis about gas and electricity providers. The
governing body of the Energy Ombudsman is Energy Industry Ombudsman (Western Ausiralia)
Limited, which provides funds for the delivery of Erergy Ombudsman services under an agresment
with the Ombudsman.

During the reporting period, 140 gas-refated complaints were received and 95 percent were
resolved within 10 business days. A tofal of 953 electricily complaints were received, 96 per cenl
of which were atso rasolved within 10 business days.

Ombudsman staff provide support 1o the Energy Ombudsman team by assisting with complex
cases and case reviews, |n 2007-08, staff also condributed to stralegic Energy Ombudsman
projects including:

« areview of the Energy Ombudsman budget for 2008-09; and

o initial research for the slatutory review of the Energy Ombudsman schemes, which is due to be
sompleted in the second half of 2008,

Further details are avaitable in the Energy Ombudsman Annual Reporl 2007-08,
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Addiional Funclions

The independent'_rs\}i'ew of the former Deparment for Community Development, undertaken by
Prudence Ford in 2007 (Review of the Department for Community Development, Prudence Ford,
January 2007}, made three recommendations relating to the Ombudsman:

»  that the Dépariment develop a three tier complainis process, in conjunction with the
Ombudsman and the Corruption and Crime Commission (Recommandation 30);

» that th.é '_chi!d death review function be transferred from the ministerial Child Death Review
Commiittee to the Ombudsman {Recommendation 31); and

e that a small specialigt investigative unil be established within the Ombudsman's office to
investigale complaints and examine cases of child deaths involving a number of agencies
(Recommendations 32).

The recommendations were endorsed by the State Government and funding has been approved
for 2008-08,

Legisiative change is required to enable the transfer of the child death review function.
Amendments o the Parffamentary Commissioner Act 1871 and the Children and Community
Services Act 2004 are being drafted that will need to be considered and passed by the Westarn
Australian Parliament before the transfer can take place. Once the f{ransfer occurs, the
Ombudsman will be responsible for reviewing the deaths of children known fo the Department for
Child Pratection, where they meel a range of review criteria.

As part of the State Government's water reform program, it is proposed that the water sarvice
customer complainis function currentiy underiaken by the Department of Water be transferred o
the Ombudsman’s office. it is expecied thai the Energy Ombudsman role will be expanded to
cover this function.

A senior officer working group made up of representatives from the Department of Water and the
Ombudsman's office was established in September 2007 to progress the transfer of this function.
Legislative change will be needed to enable the transfer to occur. Ombudsman staff have provided
high lsvel advice through the working group 1o assist preparation of the necessary legislation.
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Communication and Access

In 2007-08, the office continued exploring ways to raise awareness of the role of the Ombudsman's
office in the Western Australian community. With the appointment of a dedicated Communications
Manager, a review was conducted of existing public relations and communications materials and
activities.

Developmeant of a draft communications sirategy commenced with a view to continuing to raise the
profile of the Ombudsman amongst stakeholder groups and promote accessibility to the
Ombudsman,

inittal planning has identified some of the key messages the office is seeking to promole, the key
stakeholders involved and includes a range of activities from rebranding to media iniiatives,
conferences and regular meeiings with key stakeholders.

The communications stralegy will be finalised in the ZC08-09 financial year in line with the
outcomes of the office’s strategic planning initistives. The strategy will be reviewed regularly for
continuous improvement and relevance 16 the current office initiatives.

Inifiatives to enhance communications and access undertaken during 2007-08 ara detailed below,

Oifice Branding

During the year the office undertook a rebranding exercise, A new Style Guide has been
developed that defines the format and design of all Ombudsman Wastern Australia documentalion
inctuding office stationery, business cards and publications. The new slyle guide will be
implemented across the office in 2008-09. The new style will also flow through o the office’s
website and internal infranet sile designs.

Corporote Noewstotier

A quarterly corporate newsletter, Western Ausiralian Ombudsman, commenced this year with the
first edition issued in March 2008, The newsletter included articles on public sector regponses to
Ombudsman recommendationg, a message from the Ombudsman; office achievements; case
studies; heipful information about complaints managemeni processes and resources; the work of
enquiry officers, which is {o be part of a series of team member work profiles; and an Ombudsman
staff member personal prafile.

The newsletter is published on the Ombudsman’s website and an introductory email with a link to
the newstelter is sent directly to all public authorities,
Ombudsmaon Speaches

An importart way for the office 1o communicate awareness of is role is through presentations at
conferences, This year, the Ombudsman gave speschas lo:

+ the Australian and New Zealand Ombudsman Association;

+ the Auslralian Institute of Administrative Law,
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+ the Public Sector Management program graduates,
» the Legal Counsel Conference 2008;
s the Ethical Leac_le(ship and Governance in the Public Sector Conference; and

« the Integrity Coordinating Group Forum.

‘Aslothe Ombudsman’ Rodio Appegrances on 4FR

A new initiative this year was the introduction of regular *Ask the Ombudsman’ slots on the 6PR
Nightline progfam. It is anficipated the Ombudsman will appear on the program approximately four
to six times a 'year and listeners who have a query for the Ombudsman's office will email or call in
and have an opportunity to discuss their complaints with the Ombudsman on air.

Website Development

A significant communications project this year was the redesign of the Ombudsman's website.
Special consideration was given 1o international web standards and best practice
recommendations and the redesigned website will be compliant with the W3C international web
standards.

Due to the extensive work required, the project will continue into 2008-08 with review and revisicn
of ali content, development of an improved navigational fool and a design that incorporates the
office’s updated branding.

The new website wili help those who want to make a complaint {o access the relevant information
more easity. The redesign will also group resources and publications into one lacation and
includes a new page for media. Further additions to the websile will include frequently asked
questions and case studies.

The redesigned website will be online by the end of 2008.

Publications

The Ombudsman’s office publishes a range of brochures, guides and facl sheels to assist
members of the public and public authorities in understanding the services the office delivers.
Publications can be downloaded from the office’s website at www.ombudsman.wa.gov.au or
requests for hard copy publications can be made to the office. A full list of current publications is
listed in Appendix 2.

During 2007-08, the Ombudsman's office revised and reissued the ‘Ombudsman Western
Australia’ brochure, which details its services and complaints management process. The brochure
was also redesigned in fine with the new office branding.

informotion DVD for Migronts

The Ombudsman’s office participated in the production of an informative DVD to be provided lo all. '
new arrivals into Austrafia, The 30 minute DVD s an initiative of the Federal Atlorney General and
the FPublic Purposes Trust and will be translated into 12 languages. it provides information about
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various aspecls of Australian faw, ranging from interaction with government agencies to domestic
violance. The DVD provided the Ombudsman's office with an exceilent opportunity to increase
migrant awareness of the Ombudsman's role and services.

WACOES Conderence

In May 2008, the Ombudsman's office sponsared a booth at the WACOSS Conference 2008 in
order to raise the profile of the Western Ausiralian Ombudsman and the Energy Ombudsman with
various stakeholders. Brochures and fact sheets detailing the office’s services and complaints
management processes were disiributed at the event.

Acceassibilily for People rom Diverse Backarounds

The Ombudsman's office is commilted to ensuring that it is accessible lo people from diverse
hackgrounds. The office strives to publish ail documents in plain English,  Publications are
available in alternative formals on request and this information is provided in all new publications.,
information published on the office website can be viewed and printed in alternative formats and
TTY phone access is avaitable for paople with a hearing impairment.

Where necessary, the complaint process is modified o meet the needs of the particular person.
This includes meeting with people at a local venue where i is difficult for them 1o attend the office,
and modifying communication stralegies, for example by using a translator or inlerpreter service
where required,

Ensuring the office is accessible to Indigenous people is a Key priorily for the office. The office will
continue l¢ lake & proactive approach 1o identify strategies to raise its awareness amongst
Indigenous people and regional Waslern Australians.

Community Awareness

During the year, the Ombudsman's office continued to respond to requests from agencies, service
clubs, associations and professional bodies to present papers, speak to groups and participate in
seminars and conferences.

In 2007-08, representatives from the Ombudsman's office met with people from a variely of
community groups as follows:

® In coffaboration with the Commonwealth Ombudsman, gave a presentation to community
merbers at Boddington Old School;

s Presented ‘An Introduction 1o the Ombudsman’ to various community groups including a Red
Crosg Carer Support Group in Warwick, the Country High Schools Hostels Authority, Murdoch
Universily Parliamentary Internship students, and Probus Clubs across the Perth metropolitan
area;

¢ Met with delegates from tha Ministry of Public Securily, People's Republic of China io discuss
handling of prisenar complaints; and
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Met with a professor from the Universily of Liverpool as part of a research project on
Ombudsmen and administrative justice models.

strategic and Corporate Initiatives

Strategic Partnerships

The Intagrity _C_oérdinating Group is a cross-agency initiative established in 2005 by the
Ombudsman, Commissioner for Public Sector Standards, Corruption and Crime Commissioner
and Auditor Generai.

. The: In'éegrity Coordinating Group fosters greater pelicy coherence and operational coordination
" amongst these core integrity bodies, with the aim of strengthening integrity across the sector. Its

Terms of Reference inciude:

L ]

fostering cooperation between public sector integrity bodies,

ancouraging coordinaled research, evaluation and monitoring of the implementation of
integrity and accountability;

fostering operational cooperation and consisiency in communication, education and suppert in
public sector organisalions,

providing ongeing advice to government and the public through existing mechanisms on
institutional and law reforms needed to maintain and develop integrity in the Western
Australian public sector; and

spensoring comparative research, evaiuation and policy discussion regarding integrity
machanisms in Western Australia and cther jurisdictions, nationally and internationally.

The following initiatives of the Integrity Coordinaling Group were undertaken to promote integrity in
Western Australian public authorilies:

in August 2007, the Integrity Coordinating Group hosted an Integrity Forum on the topic of
Integrity in the Waestern Austrafian Public Sector — Current Challenges and Future Directions,
Each of the Infegrity Coordinating Group members provided their observations on integrity
issues for the pubjic sector and gave an overview of the current priorities and directions for
their offices. The Forum was a succass, with approximately 160 attendees from 85 different
public authorities. Approximately ene quarter of those attending were Chief Executive Officers;

The Integrity Coordinating Group travelled to Bunbury in October 2007 to raise awareness of
integrity in Government and the work of the group. This regional visit was hosted by the Scuth
Wesi Development Commission;

The majority of Integrity Coordinating Group member agencies supported Griffith University's
project, Whislling While They Work: Enhancing the Theory and Practice of Internal Witness
Management in the Australian Public Sector. Along with other government agencies and
oversight bodies with a shared interest in reviewing Australian laws, the parlicipating Integrity
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Coardinating Group member agencies joined this national research project to review Australian
public disclosure law and practice;

« The publication Taking Action on Integrily lssues was revised during the year to reflect mora
accurately the different roles and responsibilities of the individual members of the Integrity
Coordinating Group, to enabie public seclor staff to delermine more easily where to go for
advice andfor assistance with integrity issues; and

« The Ombudsman's office is taking the lead in organising an Integrity Coordinaling Group
Forum on integrity in Government, planned for October Z008. It is proposed that actors will
role-play scenarios relading to integrity issues for the audience, with senior staff from each of
the Integrity Coordinating Group member agencies forming a discussion panel to {atk through
the issues. The aim of the Forum is {o provide senior public sector empioyees with exampies of
integrity issues and the processes Integrity Coordinating Group member agencies go through
to investigate and resolve such issues,

Indonesian Program

In 2005, the Western Australian Ombudsman entered into a joint program with the Commonweaith
and New South Wales Ombudsmen, and the National Ombudsman Commission of indonesia, to
strengthen Ombudsman services in Indonegsia. The program, which is known as the Indonesian-
Australian Ombudsman Linkages and Strengthening Program, s funded by AusAlD under the
Government Partnerships Fund and was initiated under the five-year Australia Indonesia
Partnership for Reconstruction and Redevelopment program established after the 2004 tsunami,

The goal of the program is to provide greater access, across a larger pordion of indonesia, to more
effective and sustainable Ombudsman and ofher complaint management services. Program
activities help to strengthen the links between Ombudsman offices in Indonesia and Ausiralia and
strengthen the complaint handling and investigation capacity of staff.

The Ombudsman’s office supports the program through staff placements in Indonesia and
Australia. There were two placement aclivities during 2007-08. The first invelved an Ombudsman
staff member fram Western Australia visiling Jakarta, Kupang and Solo in Indonesia. The officer
met with Natioral Ombudsman Commission of Indonesia staff and staff from other complaint
bodies and made a number of presentalions lo stakeholders and the Kupang media about the
Ombudsman Linkages and Strengthening Program. The second placement involved lwo officers
from the National Ombudsman Commission of Indenasia visiting Perth, where they worked closely
with Ombudsman stalf over a two-week period. During the placement, the National Ombudsman
Commission of Indonesin slaff met with the former Consut of the Republic of indonesia,
Dr Aloysius Lele Madja, and his staff,

Placement activities have heen very successful. In part, this is because Ombudsman practionars in
the two countries work closely logether, sharing and exchanging information fo refing their
'compl_aml handling and investigative skills, The Ombudsman has established sirong fnks with the
National Ombudsman Commission of Indonesia through the placement aclivities and the office will
cortinue to suppart the program in the 2008-09 financial year.
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Dealing with Complainants whose Behaviour is Challenging

Since 2006, the Western Australian Ombudsman's office has been parl of a nationat research
project led by the. New Sauth Wales Ombudsman 1o develop better strategies for managing
complainants whdsa_ behaviour is challenging. The aim is 1o develop a practice manuat for staff o
assist them to deé_i with such people. In November 2007, staff from the New South Wales
Ombudsman visited Perth to conduct follow-up training with Western Australian Ombudsman staff
on dealing with unreasonable complainants.

The project c_o'n'clL'ided in April 2008 and the New South Wales Ombudsman is reviewing feedback
from stakebolders around the country as fo the manual's effectiveness and usefulness.

The Western Australian Ombudsman's office has begun a three-month trial of the manual with
sevaral Western Australian public authorities, These public autharities have been invited to
provide feedback on the manuai as a tool to assist them to deal with cusiomers who may be
challenging. If feedback indicates it Is useful, consideration will be given o releasing the manual to
all Western Australian pubtic authorities.

Orvganisafional Development and Improvement

Four key strategic priorities were ideniified following a staff strategic planning day in September
2007 and consultation wilh key stakeholders. These were:

» continue to build on the improvements in timeliness and efficiency of complaint resolution that
have been achiaved over the past few years;

« shengthen the focus on administrative improvement;
#  plan for new and enhanced functionality; and

+ enhance strategic and corporale services to maximise opportunities and minimise risk.

A number of outcomeas have been achieved in each area:

» Animproved structure that included the establishment of new Administrative Improvement and
Strategic and Corporate Services teams;

« Initiatives to further improve timeliness and to streamline the office’s complaint-handling and
investigations; and

« In the area of new and enhanced functionality, significant progress has been made to transfer
the child death review jurisdiction fo the Ombudsman's office.

Changes wera made to the structure in November 2007 to support achievement of key strategic
pricrities for the office and to assist in planning for new functions. Staff input was a crucial part of
the change process and their feedback assisted management fo develop a final structure that was ™~
implemented in March 2008, L
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The new structure builds on the strengths in complaint investigation and resolution of the former
structure and also enables the office to achieve a stronger focus on improving public administration
and strategic services.

Four key business areas were established in the new organisational siructure:

o the Executive Team;

o the Access and Resolution Team and the investigation and Resolution Team;
» the Administrative Improvement Team;

o the Strategic and Carporate Services Team,

The office accommaodation was also remodelled to accommodate staff when the child death review
function is transferred to the office and to provide space for staff under the new arganisational
structure, The work, which was completed at the end of March 2008, involved refitting of some of
the existing work areas and provision of improved staff amenities.

As part of reviewing and refining the office’s operational processes and management systems to
improve the efficiency, timeliness and quality of investigations, a new case management system,
galled RESOLVE, was implemented in April 2008. RESOLVE is presenily used by the majority of
olher State and Commonwealth Ombudsmen and was successiully introduced by the Energy
Ombudsman in the first half of 2007 to manage s enguiries and complaints.

The system integrates the former complaints management system with a separale data base that
supports the office’s enquiry service.

RESOLVE has significant benefits over other previous syslems in terms of greater flexibility, ease
of use, improved searching facifilies and better management of information.  The new system will
assist the office to further improve on timeliness and effsctivenass in complaint and investigation
monitoring through improved case management capabilities.

Development of the RESCLVE system took six months, including a period of syslem testing and
staff training before impiementation,

The office’'s Operafions Manual provides staff with a quick answer to various issues that arige in
the course of their work, It oullines the funclions of the office, the processes to be followed in
fulfilling these funclions, and the lagal and policy considerations that are relevant fo the functions.
in addition, it outiines sarvice standards and responsibilities to complainants and public authorities.

In 2007, a major review of the manual ocourred 1o bring it in line with changas in the role of the
- office since it was written in 1998, The new manual became operational in September 2007 and is
~avallable in electronic form for staff on the infranet. Hypertinks provide quick access to external
resources such as the web pages of other public autherities and providers of legat information, as
well as for cross referencing within the manual, The review formed part of the broader strategic
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goal of streamiining the office's processes to improve the efficiency, timeliness and quality of
investigations by providing staff with up to date information to assist them to undertake their work.

In the past, the Ombudsman's office has been provided with financial management and human
reseusce manageméﬂt sarvices by the Department of the Premier and Cabinet. in December
2007, the financial management services were transferred to the Office of Shared Services and it
is anticipated that human resource management services will be transferred next year. The
Business Services Team has been resiruclured to accommodate the transition and changes to
financial management processes as a result of the transition.
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A number of current and emerging trends impacting on the Ombudsman’s office wera outlined in
the 2007-08 budget papers. In this seclion of the report, information is provided which describes
the approach faken by the office to address these challenges and a range of other operational
inifiatives for the next reporting period.

informatl Fesolution

As part of reviewing and refining operational processes ard management systems lo improve the
efficiency, timaliness and qualily of the office’s complaint handling, grealer emphasis was placed
on dealing with mare simpte complaints through informal mechanisms, where appropriaie,

This approach ofien eliminales the need for formal investigations, enabling the office to facus more
resources on deating with compliex malters and systemic issues. Irformal resolution has benedits
for a wide variely of public authorifies as it eliminates (he nead for them to produce lengthy reparts.
The net cutcome is resource savings across the public sector.  There is also a benefit for
complainzants through speedy resolution of simple matters.

increasing Complexity

While there has been increased early and informat resolution in a number of cases, there has also
been a marked increase in the complexity of matters investigated by the Ombudsman’s office in
recent vears. Increased complexily of investigations places grealer resource demands on the
office and makes it more difficult to finalise complaints in a timely and effective manner.

The new screening procedures infroduced under the new struclure in March 2008 result in
complex matters being idenlified upfront, allowing appropriate resources 1o be assigned at an early
stage. Stafl have access to a checklist to make an assessment of complexity which assists in the
sase allocation process. The new complaints management system introduced in April 2008 assists
the office to moniter complex cases mare closely o improve management of such matters.

Systemic Focus

A key function of the Ombudsman Is fo improve public administration, To provide this service fo
the Weslern Austraiian Pariament and Western Australians, there is a need lo focus resources on
activilies which will have a benefit across the public seclor.  This means that, in additon 1o
resolving complainds for the individual complainant, the Ombudsman’s office has an increasing
focus on working proactively with the public authorities to improve public administration, Initiatives
include undartaking major investigations of systemic issues, developing resource malterials for use
by public authorities and providing suppart to them on best prastice administration and complaints
management,

A new Administrative mprovement Team was established during the year which wilt be
responsible for lsading, developing and implementing stralegies to improve public administration
across the public sector, including responsihility for major investigations. The establishment of this
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unit wilt enable the office to continue fo take a proactive role in addressing systemic problems and
promoting good administrative practices across the public sector.

Improving Accessibility

During the year, the office began a project to redesign ils website to make its services mare
accessible 1o customers. This will include improving the online complaint services to make it
easler for people wishing to lodge a complaint about a public authority to access information. The
redesigned website will aiso enable easier access to publications. This project will continue in
2008-08, with the redesigned website to go live by the end of 2008.

Over recent years, the office has identified an ongoing need for its services to be accessible to all
citizens, particularty Indigenous and regional Western Australians. Analysis of complaint trends in
2007 indicated that Indigenous and regional Western Australians were under-utilising the
Ombudsman's services.

During a strategic planning exercise in 2007, staff identified that Indigenous people and regionai
Weslern Ausiralians are significant consuemers of services from a range of local government,
health and other State Government services, particularly in remote and rural communities. Staff
recognised the need to strive to be more respansive and accessible 1o these peopie.

Appraoved funding for the transfer of the child death review function to the Ombudsman inciudes
pravision for an Indigencus Liaison Officer to work in the proposed child death review unit.

The aoffice wili continue 1o take a proactive approach to identify strategies to raise its awarenass
amongst Indigenous people and regional Western Australians.
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Independent Audit Opinion for Performance Indicators and
Financial Statements

e

Auditor Gengrat

ENDEPENBENT AUDIT OPINEON
Fo the Parbimment of Western Australia
PARLIAMENTARY COMMISSIONER FOR ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATIONS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

I lave am‘hlﬁd the accounts, financial stitements, controls and key performance indicators
of the P; ary C for Administrative Investi gty

The financial statements comprize the Halance Sheet sz at 30 June 2008, mad the Income
Statement, Stutensént of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Staterent, Schedule of Income and
Expienses by Service, and Summsary of Consolidated Account Apprapriations and Ineome
Egumazez £or the yanr then ended, a sumesary of significant sceoupting policier snd ofier
explanatoty Notes.

The key performance indicators consist of key indicators of effectiveness and efficiency,

Parli tary £ isstoner’s Responsibility for the Finaneisl Stateanentz and Key

Performanee Indicaters

The Parliamentary Comumistioner is responsible for keeping proper accounts, snd the
on and fair p ion of the fi 1 gtal 11 aceordance with Austratisn

Accmmtmg Standards (inchuding the Awstalian Accounting Interpretations) and the

T:easnrcr s Instructions, and the key performance indicators. This responsibility includes

and internai trels relevant to the preparation and Fair

pmscnmlm: of the fmancial statements and Loy perfomance fdicatoss that ase free fiom

matesial misstatement, whether due lo fraud or exor; selecling and applymg ap]ampﬁzia

accmnlmig pelicies, mzkmg rccounting estimates that are 1 ble in the ¢

and complying with the Fmancial Management Act 2006 and other relevant wriften law,

Snmmary of my Role

Az required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibifity is to express an opinion en
the financisl statements, controls aud key performance indicators based on my andit. This
was done by testing selected samyples of the sudit evidence 1 believe that the andit evidence
1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for my andit opinion. Further
information on my audit approach 15 provided in sy mudit practice statement. Refer
“http:ffeewrw.auditwa, gov.aw/ pubs/Aundit-Practice-Statement pdf*.

An mudié does net gussantes that every amount and dL*clomre in the ﬁ.nancm alalements
and key performance indicators £ etror free, The remy’
that an andit does net examnine alf evidence and every tremsaction }Iuwnver my it
procedmes should identify errors or omissions significant enough to adverzely affect the
decisions of nsers of the financial statements and key parformance indicators.
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Discloswres and Legal Compliance

Parlimmentary Conunissioner for Adnisisteative Investigations
Financial Statements and Koy Performance Indicators for the year ended 38 June 2003

Audit Dpiuion
Ty oplaion,

)

4

(i)

ooty

the financiad statements are hiased on peaper noconnis and preent faitly the
fancial position of the Parliamentwry Commissioner for Adminisirative
Tuvestigations at 30 June 2008 and its finaucial performauce and cash fews far
the vear ended en that date. They sre in accordance with Australian Accouning
Standards (ineluding the Awstralian  Accounting Interpretstions) and  the
Tresawnr s Insteclions.

the controls exercized by the Parliansentary Comusissionsr provide reasonable
assurance thay the receipt, expandintre and juvasient of nioney, the acquisiton
and disposal of property, and the incurting of labulities have been in secordance
with legislative provitions; and

the key perforwance indicators of the Parliameentary Conmissioner are relevant
wnd oppropriate o lelp wwn omen the Parliamentary Comngmioncr’s
perfornumee and fairly represent the fmdicated performance for the year ended
30 June 2008,

i

o

COLIN MURFHY
AUDITOP. GENERAL
8 September 2008
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Cerlification of Key Performance Indicatfors

For the year ended 30 June 2008

i hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant
and are appropriste for assisting users to assess performance and accurately represent
the performance of the Parliamentary Commissioner for Adminisirative Investigations for
lhe financial year ended 30 June 2008.

Chris Field
Accouniing Officer

15 September 2008
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Ceriification of Financial Statemenis

For the year ended 30 June 2008

4 % ombudsman
= N i LRI AN ATIA

“Srrving Partkanet . Eoring Bislans Ao

The accompanying financial statements of the Parliamentary Commissioner for
Administrative Investigations have been prepared in compliance with the pravisions of the
Financlal Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the
financial iransactions for the financial year ending 30 June 2008 and the financial position
as at 30 June 2008.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circurmnstances which would render any
particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

- "{{2((;.'4 ' /'/Z.,.,,, e

{ -
Julie Roberts Chris Field
AJChief Finance Officer Accountable Authority
15 September 2008 15 September 2008
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Finoncial Statements

fncome siatement

For the year ended 30 June 2008

COST OF SERVICES

Expenses
Employee benelits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Capital user charge
Other expenses
Total cost of services

Income

Reventie
Users charges and fees
Commonwealth granis and contributions
Total revenue

Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES

{NCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service Appropriation
Other grant funding
Resources received free of charge
Lizbililies assumed by the Treasurer
Total income from State Government

HEITHSURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD

This incomie statement should be read in conjunction wilh the Notes to Financial Statements.
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L R00708 T 00607
Neta g CE
7 8,119,225 3778948
8 658,700 514,777
9 116,619 141,207
10 486,439 268,673
1 . 48,177
12 29,581 24,817
4,390,464 4,774,599
13 671,690 725,075
- 14,858
671,690 739,933
671,600 739,933
3718774 4,034,666
14
3727000 2,988,000
63,120 75,988
182,386 922 885
3972506 3,986,873
253,732
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Balance Sheel

For the year ended 30 June 2008

ASSETS
Gurrant Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 24 594,419 526,160
Receivables 16 335,725 196,431
Amounts receivable for services 17 143,000 106,000
Total Current Assets 1,073,144 528,591

Non-Current Assets

Restricted cash and cash equivalenis 15 30,731 17,126
Praperty, plant and equipment 18 667,594 249,871
Infangible assats 19 157,853 91,920
Amounts receivable for services 17 600,000 659,000
Total Non-Current Assets 1,456,178 1,017,917
TOTAL ASSETS 2,529,322 1,846,508
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 21 376,819 53111
Provisions 22 638,453 568,934
Total Current Liabilities 1,015,272 522,045

Non-Current Liabilities

Provigions 22 175,980 140,126
Total Non-Gurrant Liabilities 176,980 140,125
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,191,252 762,170
Net Assats 1,338,070 1,084,338
EQUITY 23
Contributed equity 732,000 732,000
Reserves - -
Accumulated surplus 606,070 352,338
TOTAL EQUITY 1,338,070 1,084,338
TQTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,529,322 1,846,508

This Batance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Financiai Statements,

Page 74



Hsclosures and Legol Compliance

Statement of Changes in Egully
For year ended 30 June 2008

SliNote S

S-SR

Balance of atjuity at start of period 1,084,338 1,206,063
CONTRIBUTED EQUITY 23

Batance sl start of period 732,006 732,000

Capital contribution - -

Balance at end of pericd 732,000 732,000
RESERVES 23

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Balance at start of poriod -

Realized on asset disposal -

Balanice at end of perfod - -
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS {RETAINED EARNINGS) 23

Balance at start of period 352,338 468,946

Reslatement of opening balance due o change in

accourting policy - (6 TN

352,338 403,152
Restatement of opening balance due lo correslion of prior
accounting pericd Financial Statement grrors - 43
352,338 395,014

Realised portion of revaluation reserve on asset disposal - 5117

i SHSurplus for the period 253,732 GAR )]

Balance at end of period 606.070 52,338
Balance of equity at end of period 1.338,070 1,084,338

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Financlal Statermnents.
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Cosh Flow Stotement

For the year ended 30 June 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appr'opriatéons 3,346,000 2,702,000
Holding accourt drawdowns 403,000 107,000
Net Cash provided by State Governmant 3,748,000 2,809,000

Utilised as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supgplies and services
Capital User Charge
Accommodation
GST payments on purchases
GST payments to taxation authority

Other payments

Receipts

User Charges and Feas 564,632
GST receipts on sales 55,904
QST receipts from taxation authority 76,748

Net cash used in operating activitles 24

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purehase of nen-current physical assels {526

Net cash used in investing activities

Net {daorousedinerease in cash and cash equivalents 81,864

Cash ardl cash equivalents at the beginning of period 543,286 1,044,080
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF

PERIOD 24 625,150 543,286

The Cash Flow Statement should he read in conjunction with the Netes to Financial Statements.
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Summory of Consolidated Fund Aopropriations and income Estimuales

For the year ended 30 June 2008

Emimai

“Actial

T
S iniin

DELIVERY OF SERVICES
Hem 4 Net amount
appropriated to delfiver
sarvices 2,933,000 3,261,000 318,000 3,251,000 2,581,000 670,000
Armount authorised by

other staliles

Parliamentary

Commissioner Act 1971 407,000 476,000 62,000 476,000 407,000 52,000

Total appropriations
provided to deliver
services 3,340,600 3,727,000 387,000 3,727,000 2,988,000 739,000

CAPITAL
Capital Contributions . - . . . -

GRAND TOTAL 3,340,000 3727000 387,000 3,727,000 2,088,000 738,000

Details OF Exponses by

Service

Other Public Sector

Organisations 3,847,000 4212437 365,437 4,212,437 4,734,794
Telecommunications

Interception Audit 54,000 18027 124,027 178,027 39,805 138,222
Tatal Cost of Services 3,801,000 4,380,484 489,464 4,380,464 4,774,599

l.ess total revenues from
ordinary activities

H <

Net Cost of Services 3383000 3718774 338,774 3,748,774

4,634,666
Adjustmenis i 8,226 51,226 8,726 } 3 1,054,802
Total appropriations
provided to deliver
services 3,340,000 3,727.000 387.000 3727000 2,986,000 739.000

Capital Expenditure
Purchase of non-current
physical assels 106,000 433,000 2597.000 403,000 184,461 218,539
Adjustment for other
funding sources

PEer ey

Capital Contribution
{appropriation) - . - - . .

Adjustments comprise movements In cash balances and other accrual iterns such as recelvables, payables
and superannuation,

Note 28 "Explanatory statement” provides details of any significant variations belween sstimates and sctual
resulis for 2008 and between the actual resulls for 2007 and 2008,
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Schedule of Income and Expenses by Sewvice

For the year ended 30 June 2008

Otfies Pobiic Seolor slenoniminioatiol
- Organisations Inferceplion Audit

008" 2007
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses '
Employee berefits expense 2,941,292 3,740,648 177,934 38,300 3,119,226 3,778,948
Supplies and services 658,656 513,241 43 1,536 658,699 514,777
Depreciation and
amortigation expense 116,619 141,207 - - 716,619 141,207
Accornmodation expenses 466,339 268,673 - - 466,339 208,673
Capital User Charge - 46,177 - - - 46,177
Clher expenses 29,531 24,848 50 (Y 29,584 24,817
Total cost of services C4212,437 4,734,794 178,027 39,805 4390464 4,774,599
Income
Ciher revenue 871,680 726,075 " - 671,690 725,075
Commonweaith grants and
contributions - 14,858 - . - 14,858

Total income other than
income from State
Government 671,680 739,933 - B 671,690 739,933

NET COST OF SERVICES 3,540,747 3,894,861 178,027 39,805 3,718,774 4,034,666

INCOME FROM STATE

GOVERNMENT

Service appropriation 3,673,000 2,936,000 54,000 52,000 3727000 2988000
Resources received free of

charge 63,120 74,468 “ 1,520 63,120 75,988
{Liabilities assumed by the

Treasurer 182,386 922,885 - - 182,386 922,885
Total income fram State

Government 3,918,506 3,933,353 54,000 53,520 3,072,506 3,986,873

Surplus/{dsiicit: for the
period 377,759

13,715 253,732 (37,7

The Schedule of incomes and Expenses should be read in conjunction with the Notes to Financial
Statements.
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Notes fo the Flnanclal Slalements

The mission of the Parliamentary Commissioner for Administrative Investigations (the Office) is “To
assist the Parliament of Wastern Australia {o be confident that the public sectar of the State is
accountable for, and is improving the standard of, administrative decision-making, practices and
conduct”.

The Office is mainly funded by Parliamentary appropriation. The financial statemenis encompass
afl funds through which the Office controls resources to carry on its funclions.

The Office's financial statements for the year ended 3C June 2008 have been prepared in
accordance wilth Australian equivalents to Infernational Financial Reporting Stlandards (AIFRS),
which comprise a Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statemenis (the
Framework} and Australian  Acgounting Standards  (inciuding the Ausiralian  Accounting
Imerprefations).

In preparing these financial statements the Office has adopled, where relevani to its aperations,
new and revised Standards and Inierprefations from their operative dales as issued by the AASB
and formerly the Urgent lssues Group (UIG).

Early adoption of standards

The Office cannot eardy adopt an Australian Accounting Standard or Australian Accounting
Interpretation unless specifically permilled by 71 1101 "Application of Australian Accounting
Standards and Other Pronouncemenis”, No Slandards and Interpretations that have been issued
or amanded but are not yet effective have been early adopted by the Office for the annual reporting
period ended 30 June 2008.

{a) General Statement

The financial statements constitile a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Framawark, Slatements of Accounting
Cancepts and olher authoritative proncuncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board
ag applied by the Treasurers Instructions.  Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's
Instructions lo vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer's Instruclions are legislative provisions
governing the preparation of financiat statements and take precedence over Accounting Standards,
1he Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and olher authoritative pronouncements of
the Augiralian Accounting Standards Board.

Where maodification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the reported
results, details of that modification and the resulling financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.
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{b) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard AAS 29
"Financial Reperting by Government Depariments” on the accrual basis of accounting using the
historical cost convention, medified by the revaluation of land, buildings and infrastructure which
have been measured at fair value,

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been
consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise siated.

The financial stalements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest dellar.

The judgements that have been made in the process of applying the Office’s accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial stalements are
disclosad at note 4 "Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’.

The key assumplicns made conceing the fulure, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assels and fiabilities within the next financial year are disciosed al note § 'Key
sources of estimation uncertainty’,

(¢} Reporting Entity
The reporting entity comprises the Office.
{d} Contributed Equity

UIG Interpretations 1038 'Contributions by Owners Made to Whally-Owned Public Sector Entities'
requires transfers in the nature of equity coniributions to be designated by the Government (the
owner) as contributions by owners {at the time of, or priar to transfer) before such tfransfers can be
recognised as equity contributions, Capital contributions (appropriations) have been designated as
contributions by owners by Treasurer's Instruction (Th) 955 "Ceontributions by Cwners made to
Whotly Owned Public Sector Entities” and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity,

Transfer of net assets tofrom other agencies are designated as contributions by owners where the
transfers are non-discretionary and non-recigrecal. See note 23 "Equity’.

{e} Income
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
recegnised for the major business aclivities as follows:

Rendering of Services

Revenue is recognised upon the delivery of the service o the clieni or by reference to the stage of
completion of the transaction.
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Service Appropriations

Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues in the period in which the Department gains
control of the appropriated funds. The Department gains conirol of appropriated funds at the fime
those funds are deposited into the Departments bank account or credited to the holding account
held at Treasury. See note 14 'Income from State Government’ for further detail.

Net Appropriation Determination

The Treasurer may make a determination providing for prescribed receipts to be retained for
services under the confrol of the Office. In accordance wilh the determinations specified in the
2007-2008 Budget Statements, the Office retained $671.680 in 2008 (§739,933 in 2007) from the
following:

s«  Proceads from fees and charges; and
e Other Office revenue.
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-racipracal contributions

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Office obtaing conirol over the assets comprising the
coriributions which is usually when cash is received.

Qther nen-reciprocal sonlributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised al their fair
value. Condributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined
and the services would ba purchased if not donated.

Where confributions recognised as revenues during the reporling period were obtained on the
condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those
conditions were undischarged as at the balance sheet date, the nature of, and amounts pertaining
to, these undischarged conditions are disclosed in the notes.

Gains

Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on a net basis. These include
gains arising on the disposal of non-currerd assels and some revaluations of non-current assets.

{f) Property, Plant and Equipment
Capitalisation/Expansing of assels

ltems of property, plant and equipmens costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assels and the
cost of ulilising assels is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives, ltems of properly, piant
and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the income Siatement
{other than where they Torm part of a group of similar items which are significant in fotal).

Initial recognition and measurement

Al items of praperty, plant and equipment are initially recognised al cost.
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For items of property, plant and equipment asquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, the
cost is their fair value al the date of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

After recognition as an assel, the Department uses the cost modet for all other property, plant and
equipment. Alf items of properly, plant and equipment are carried al historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Derecognifion

Upoan dis'posal ar derecognition of an item of properly, plant and eguipment, any revaluation
raserve relating to that assel is retained in the asset revaluation reserve.

Depreciation

All non-current assets having a lmited useful iife are systematically depreciated over their
estimated useful lives in a manner which reflects the consumption of their future economic
henetits.

Depreciation is calculaled on the straight line mathod, using rates which are reviewed annually.
Estimaled useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

«  Furniture and fittings - 10 years
«  Plant and machinary - 10 years
+  Computer hardware - 3 years

»  Office equipment - 5 years

Works of art controlled by the Office are classified as property, plant and equipmernt. They are
anticipated to have very long and indefinite usefui lives. Their service potential has not, in any
material sense, been consumed during the reporling period and so no depreciation has been
recognised,

(g} Intangible Assets
Capitalisation/Expensing of assels

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 and more and inlernally generated intangible
assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed
(amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately expensed
directly to the Income Statement.

Al acquired and internally developed intangible assets are Initially recognised at cost. For assets
acquired at no cost ar far neminal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

The cost mode! is applied for subsequent measurgment requiring the asset to be carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment fosses.
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Amortisation for intangible assets with finile useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected
benefit {estimated vugeiul ife) on the straight line basis using rates which are reviewed annually, Al
intangible assets controlled by ihe Office have a finite useful life and zero residual value. The
expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:

s Software - 3 years
Computer Software

Software that is an integral part of the relaled hardware is treated as properly, piant and
equipment, Scftware that is nof an integrat part of the related hardware is freated as an intangible
asset, Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.

Web site costs

Welbr sile cosls are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate o the
acauisiion or development of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised. Generally,
costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning phase of a web site, and ongoing costs of
mainienance during the operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a
web sile, {o the exient that they represent probable Tuture economic benefits that can be reliably
measured, are capitalised.

(h} Impairment of Assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels are tested for any indication of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is
estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amourt, the asset is
considered impaired and s written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is
recognised. As the Office is a not-for-profié entity, unless an asset has been ideniified as a surplus
assel, the recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair value less costs to sell and
depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally fimited fo ¢ircumstances where an assel’s deprecialion is
materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change
in useful fife. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
deprediationfamoeriisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of assetl's fulure economic
benefits and to evaluaie any impairment risk from falling replacement costs,

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assels not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at each balance sheet date irrespective of whether there is any indication of
impairment,

The recoverable amount of assets idenlified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs
o sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the assel. Surplus
assels carred at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by
reference lo market-based evidence, Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated
replacement cost, surplus assels are af risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is
meastred. Surplus assels al cost are lested for indications of impairment al each balance sheet
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date. See note 20 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing. See
note 3(n) ‘Receivables’ and note 16 ‘Receivables’ for impairment of receivable’s.

(i} Leases

The Office holds operating leases for ils office buildings and motor vehicles where the lessor
effectivaly retains all of the risks and benefils incidental to ownership of the items held under the
operating leases. Equal instalments of the lease payments are charged to the Income Statement
over the lease term as this is representative of the patiern of benefits o be derived from the leased
property. -

)] Financial instruments

In addition to cash, the Department has two categories of financial instrument:
+ Receivables; and

. Financiat liabilities measured at amortised cost.

These have been disaggregated into the following classes:

s Financial Assels

+  Cash and cash equivalents

« Raestricled cash and cash equivalents

+«  Receivables

»  Amounts receivable for services

= Financial Liabilities

+ Payables

Initial recognition and measurement of financial insttuments is at fair value which normally equates

{0 the iransaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payabtes is the transaction cost or the face value
because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

{k} Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes restricled cash
and cash equivalents. These are comprised of cash on hand and short-term deposits with ariginal
malurities of three months or jess that are readily converiible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

() Accrued Salaries

The accrued salaries suspense account (see note 15 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents’)
sonsists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account over a period of 10 financial years {o
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largely meet the additional cash outflow in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur insiead of
the normal 26. No interest is received on this account,

Accrued salaries (refer note 21 'Payables') represent the amount due to staff bul unpaid at the end
of the financial year, as the pay date for the fast pay period for that financial year does not coincide
with the end of the financiat year, Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial
year end. The Office considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to ils net
fair value,

{m) Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding Account)

The Office receives appropriation funding en an accrual basis that recognises the full annual cash
and non-cash cost of services, The appropriations are paid parily in cash and parlly as an asset
{Holding Account receivable) that is accessible on the emergence of the cash funding requiremert
to cover items such as leave entifiements and asset replacement. See also note 14 ‘lncome from
Slale Government’ and note 17 "Amounts receivable for services'.

{n} Receivables

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for
uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectabillity of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account,
The allowance for uncoliectible amounts {doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence
that the Office witl not be able to collect the debts, The carrying armount is equivalent to fair value
as it is due for setilement within 30 days. See note 3(j) ‘Financial Instruments and note 16
‘Receivabies’.

{0) Payabies

Payables are recognised when the Office becomes obliged {o make future payments as a result of
a purchase of assels or services. The carrying amount is equivalent o fair value, as they are
generally settled within 30 days, See note 3(j) 'Financiat Instrumenis and note 21 ‘Payables’

{p) Provisions

Pravisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a
present legat, equitable or constructive abligation as a result of a past evenl and when the outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a refiable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed al each balance shest date. See
note 22 'Provisions’,

{i}y Provisions - Employee Benefits
Annual Leave and Long Service Leave

The liability for annual and long service leave expecied to be seltled within 12 months after the
balance sheet date is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid
Wher_n the liabilittes are setiled. Annual and fong service leave expacted to be seitled more than 12
months after the halance sheet date is measured al the present value of amounts expected to be
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paid when the liabllites are setlled. lLeave liabilities are in respect of services provided by
employees up to the balance sheet dale.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels Er}cludin'g non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions. In
addition, the long service leave liability also considers the experience of employee departures and
periods of service,”’

The expected future payments are discounted using market yields al the batance sheet dale on
national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as pessible, the estimated
future cash outflows.

Al annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities
as the Office does not have an unpconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date.

Superannuation

The Governmeni Empioyees Superannuation Board (GESB) administers the following
superannuation schemes.

s+  Employees may contribute to the Pansien Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme now
closed o new members or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme {(GSS), a defined benefit
jump sum scheme also closed to new members. The Office has no liabitities for
superannuation charges under the Pension or the GSS Schemes as the liability has been
assumed by Treasurer.

«  Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who are not members of either
the Pension or the GSS Schemes bacame non-confributory members of the West State
Superannuation Scheme {(W55). Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April
2007 became maembers of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS), Both of these schemes are
accumutation schemes. The Office makes concurrent contributions to GESB an behalf of
employeas in compliance with the Commonweaith Government’s Superannuation Guaraniae
(Administration) Act 1992. These contributions extinguish the lability for superannuation
charges in respect of the WSS and GESBS Schemes.

The GESBE makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension and GS8 Schemes, and is
recouped by the Treasurer for the employer's share. See also note 3{q) ‘Superannuation expense’,

{il} Provisions - Other
Employment On-Costs

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and
are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate
has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses’ and are not included
as par of the Qffice’s ‘Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in 'Employment
on-costs provision', (See nofe 12 'Other expanses’ and note 22 'Provisions”), -

Frge 84



Diselosures ond Legal Compliance

{4) Superannuation Expense

The following elements are included in calculating the superannuation expense in the Income
Staternent:

(a) Defined benefit plans - Change in the unfunded employer's liability (i.e. current service cost
and, actuarial gains and losses) assumed by the Treasurer in respect of current employees who
are members of the Pension Scheme and current employess who accrued a benefit on transfer
from thal Scheme o the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS); and

() Defined sontribution plans - Employer contributions paid to the GBS (concurrent contributions),
the West State Superannuation Scheme (WS5), GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).

Defined benefit plans - in order fo reflect the frue cost of services, the movements (i.e. current
service cost and, actuarial geins and losses) in the liabilities in respect of the Pension Scheme and
the 35S Scherme transfer benelits are recognised as expenses directly in the Income Statement.
As these liabilities are assumed by the Treasurer (refer note 3(p)(i}). a revenue tled ‘Liabiliies
assumed by the Treasurer equivalenl to the expense is recognised under Income from Slate
Government in the Income Staternent. See note 14 Income from State Government'.

The superannuation expense does not include payment of persions to retirees, as this does not
constitute part of the cost of services provided in the current year.

Defined contribution plans - in order to reflect the Office's true cost of services, the Office is fundad
for the equivaient of employer conlributions in respecl of the GSS Scheme (excluding transfer
benefils). These contributions were paid to the GESB during the year and placed in a trust
account administered by the GESB on behalf of the Treasurer. The GESB subsequently paid
thase employer contributions in respect of the GSS Scheme to the Consolidaled Account.

The GSS Scheme is a defined benefil scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-
govemnmeni reporting. However, apart from the transfer benefit, it is a defined contribution plan for
agency purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contribulions} made by {he agency
to GESB exinguishes the agency's obligations o the related superannuation liability.

{r} Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Consideration

Resources received free of charge or for nominal consideration that can be reliably measured are
recognised as income and as assets or expenses as appropriate at fair value,

{8} Comparative Figures

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures
presented in the current financial year,

The judgements that have been used in the process of applying accounting policies have had no
material effect on amouniis recognised in the financial statements.
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Their were no estimates or assumptions made concerning the future, or ather key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance sheel dale that is likely to have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounis of assets and fabilities within the next financiai year.

Initial appEicat'iori of an Australian Accounting Standard

The Office has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian Acceunting
Interpretations effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2007 that
impacted aon the Office:

1. AASB 7 'Financial Instruments: Disciosures' (including consequential amendments in AASB
2005-10 *Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 132, AASB 101, AASE 114,
AASE 117, AASB 133, AASBE 139, AASB 1, AASBE 4, AASB 1023 & AASB 1038]). This Standard
reguires new disclosures in relation to financial instruments and while there is no financial impact,
the changes have resulted in increased disclosures, both quantitative and qualitative, of the
Office’s exposure 1o risks, including enhanced disclosure regarding components of the Office's
financial position and performance, and changes to the way of presenfing certain items in the notes
to the financial statements.

Voluntary Changes in Accourtting Policy and Prior Period Errors

At the end of November 2007, the Office rolled into the Depariment of Treasury and Finances
Shared Services environment. Prior to the roll in, the Office mainiained an asse! capitalisation
thrashold of $1,000. Following the roll in and in accordance with Treasurer's Instruction 1101, the
asse! capitalisation policy for the Office was increased 1o $5.000,

In accordance with the requirements of AASE 108, the Office has accounted for this change in
accounting policy by reirospectively adjusting the opening balance of the accumulaied
surplus/ideiisancy; account for the earliest prior period possible and by adjusting the relevant
financial statemert comparative amounts disclosed for the prior peried presented, as if the new
accounting policy had aiways been applied.,

As a result of applying the §5,000 capitalisation thresheld to the Offices assels as at July 1, 2006 a
number of the financial statement line items presented in the 2008/07 comparative fnancial
statements have been changed, Whilst the delails of these changes are presented below, some of
the key changes include the following:

Property, Plant and Equipment balances as at July 1 2006 were allered as foliows afler the
capitalisation change;
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Furniture and Fittings
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment ioss

Comrputer Equipmaent

At cost

Accumulated deprecialion
Accusmulated impairment loss

Office Equipmernt

At cost

Accumulaled depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss

Office Establishment

At sost

Accumulaled depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss

Works of Art

Af cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumutated impairment ioss

Total
Nef Difference §65,7595

Diselosures and Legal Compliunce

= Prigr o charige
LN panialisty polisy

a3 2000 Balances

July 12006 Bafances
: CAfter shange in 0E
s capilalisation polley DE

6,000

76,293

12,4585

87,561

s

62,39

41,256

2,912

660,228

554,636

273,872

271,306

4,965 0

0 0

4,965 Q
372,469 306,673

—~  Depreciation for 2006-07 decreased from $167,267 1o $141,207 afler the capitalisalion
change and correction of prior period error.

~  Supplies and Services for 2006-07 increased by $43,337 after the capitalisalion change as a
result of mare assets being expensed rather than capitalised.
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It was assessed that the earliest practical period lhat this change in accounting policy could be
applied was as at July 1 2008, Hence this new capitalisation policy has been applied to the Offices
assets as at that date and the current financial staternents comparative balances adjusied to reflect
application of the new capitalisation policy from that date. The net effect of the change in the
capitalisation policy was a net decrease in the Offices assel base of $65,795 which is reflected in
an adjustment to the accumulated surplusf;: <1 account for this amount {See Changes in
Equity account for disclosure).

In addition; the Office identified a number of items of furniture and equipment and fitout costs which
had either been replaced several years earlier, or where not assets of the Office. The earliest
practical period to which adjustments required to the financial statements balances could be
posted was July 1, 2008,

The four items of furniture and equipment were fully depreciated as at July 1, 2006 being asset
costs $101,593 and accumulated depreciation of $101,593 at thai date. The fit-oul costs of $8,137
ocourred during 2006-07 and hence, depreciation of $339 related 1o this asset has been wrilten
back in the Income Statement for that financial year and the associated asset cost de-recognised
as at June 30, 2007,

The relevant assel calegories adjusted with their balances as at June 30 2007 pre the change in
the capitalisations policy and prior pericd errors and post the change in the policy and prior period
errors are as follows:

st 3072007 Balance.
G Priortg ehange i il Affer change i
capitalisation policy and = . eapltalisation policy and ™
I priaF perlod errors: LR U riay peria] eerors i

Jurie 3002007 Balances s

F'urn'it.ﬁ'ré and.'Fillin'g's '
At cost 30,439 21,780
Accumulated depreciation {140 66D
Accumulated impairment inss &

Compuier Equipment

Al cost 234,784

Accumulated depreciation REER

Accumulated impairment loss .
82,789

Office Equipment

At cost 84,598

Accurnulated depreciation VR I

Agcumulated impairment loss N R
31,733 16,339
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Sung 30 2007 Balatces
L Prior o changs in
Lo oaplialisation poficy and

s e 30 2007 Belances
: S Al chiangs Ch
Cwaplalisaiion policy and -

L o period errarg L0 Y prior paricd arors

Offine Establishment
At cost 719,092 606,362
Accumulaied depreciation 54n
Accumulated impairment loss _ _

205,808 195,842
Waorks of Art
Al cost 4,985 0
Accumulated depreciation o )
Accurnuiated impairment loss B .

4,965

Tolal 341,080 249,871

Net Difference §91,209
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Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yel operalive

The Office cannot early adopt an Australian Accounling Standard or Austrafian Accounting
Interpretation unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of Auslralian Accounting
Standards and Other Proncuncemenis’. Consequently, the Office has not applied the following
Australian Acceunting Standards and Austratian Accounting Interpretations that have been issued
and which may impact the Office but are not yet effective. Where applicable, the Office plans o
apply these Standards and Interpretations from their application date:

2 Operative for o
- reporting peried v
e S e - beginring anfafler
AASE 101 'Presentation of Financial Slatements {(September 2007). This Standasd 1 January 2009
has been revised and will change the slructure of the financial staterments. These
changes will require that owner changes in equily are presented separately from
nen-owner changes in equity. The Office does not expect any financial impact
when the Standard is first applied.

Review of AAS 27 ‘Financial Reporting by Local Governments', 29 ‘Financial
Reporling by Government Departments and 31 'Financial Reporling by
Governmenis’. The AASB has made the following pronouncements from its short
term raview of AAS 27, AAS 29 and AAS 31

AASE 1004 ‘Contributions' (December 2007). 1 July 2008
AASE 1050 ‘Administered tems' (December 2007), 1 July 2008
AASB 1051 ‘Land Under Roads' (Degember 2007). 1 July 2008
AASB 1052 ‘Disaggregated Disclosures' (December 2007). 1 July 2008
AASB 2007-9 ‘Amendmenis o Australian Accounting Standards arising from the 1 July 2008

review of AASs 27, 20 and 31 (AASB 3, AABH 5, AASE 8, AASE 101, AASE 114,
AASB 116, AASB 127 & AASB 137) (Decamber 2007).

Interpretstion 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made o Wholly-Owned Public 1 Judy 2008
Seclor Entities (December 2007).

The exisling requirements in AAS27, AAS 29 and AAS 31 have been transferred
to the above new and existing topic-based Standards and Interpretation. These
requirements remain substantively unchanged. The new and revised Standards
make soma modifications te disclosures, otherwise there will be no financial
impact.
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e
Wages and salaries fal 2,578,134 2,663,754
Suparannuation - defined contribution plans'™ 226,860 202,153
Superannuation - defined benefit plans’™"™ 182,386 922,885
Long service leave'™ 51,062
Annual leave'™ 56,652 32,650
Gther employee benefit expense 23,10

3,119,225 3,778,948

(a) Includes the value of the Fringe bengfit to the employee plus the Fringe benefits tax compoenent

{5} Defined contribution plans include West Stale, Gold State and GESB Super Scheme {contributions
paid),
{c} Defined banefit plans include Pension scheme and Gold State (pre-transfer benefit),

{d})  An equivalent notional income is also recegnised {see nole 14 'come from State Government’)
{&) Includes a superannuation contribution component,

Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insuranse are included al note 12 'Other expenses’.
The employment on-costs liability is included at note 22 'Provistons’.

Trave! 35,638 22,40

Communications 37,422 37,830
Consumables 143,259 120,369
Services and contracts 296,798 223,667
Resources received free of charge {see niote 14) 63,120 73,000
Other 82,463 37,601

658,700 514,777
Furniture and fittings 68,205 920
Camputer equipment 11,015 7,522
Offica equipment 7,245 6,573
Office establishment - 126,192
Flant & Machinery 1,587 -
Computer software 28 597 =
Total Depreciation 116,619 141,207
Lease rentals and outgoings 465,683 265,685
Resources received free of charge (see note 14) 656 2,988

466,339 268,673
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B00708 L 2006-07
SO SR DI ey
- 46,177

The charge was a levy applied by Government for the use of its capital. in 2008-07, the final year in which
the charge was levied, a single payment was made equal lo the appropriation for 2006-07 iess any
adjustment relating to 2005-06.

Employment an-costs 3,393 507
Audit Fee 18,800 18,800
Bad Debt Write-off 7.388 -

29,581 24,817

Inciudes workers' compensation insurance and olher employment on-cests.  The on-costs liability
associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liabilily is included at note 22 'Provisions’.
Superannuation condributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not
included in employment on-costs.

F'?vetained 'c“évenue -
other 671,690 7254075

671,690 725,075

Appropriation received during the year:
Service appropriations™

Recurrent 3,251,000 2,581,000
Special Acts 476,000 407,000
3,727,000 2,986,000

The following fiabilities have been assumed by the Treasurer during the financial year:

Superannuation™ 182,386 922 885

Tatal liahilities assumead by the Treasurer 182,386 922,885

The following assets have been assumed fromf(transferred to) other
state government agencies during the financial year(c):

Total assets assumed/(transferred) 182,386 022,885

Resources received free of charge™
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by

agencies:

Department of Justice 8,207 -
Department of the Premier and Cabinet Corporate and Business

Services 54,823 73,000
Depariment of Housing and Works - property management - 2.588

63,120 75,988
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(28) Service appropristions are accrual amounts reflecting the full cost of services delivered.  The
appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding
aceount) comprises the depreciation expense for 1he year and any agreed increase in leave lablity
during the year.

(I3)  The assumption of the superannuation liability by the Treasurer is a nolionai income o malch Lhe
natfonal superannuation expense reported in respect of current employees who are members of the
Pension Scheme and current employees who have a transfer benefil entitlernent under the Gold State
Superannuation Scheme.

{c) Where the Treasurer or other entity has assumed a liabilily, the Office recognises revenues eguivalent
to the amount of the Hability assumed and an expense relating to the nalure of the event or events that
Initially gave rise to the Eability. From 1 July 2002 non-discrelionary non-reciprocal transfers of net
assets {ie. restrucluring of administrative arrangements} have been classified as Contributions by
Owners (GBOs) under 1 955 and are laken dirsctly {o equity.

(d)y  Where assels or services have been received free of chiarge or for nominal cost, the Office recognises
ravenues equivaient to the fair value of thae assels andior the fair value of those services that can be
reliably determined and which would have been purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall
be racognised as assets or expenses, as applicable, The exception occurs where the contributions of
assets or services are in the nalure of conlrbutions by owners, in which case the Office makes
adjustrmant direct to equity.

CPOOT08 L a00B0T
Mon-current
Accrued salaries suspense account ™ 30,731 17,126

(a)  Amount held in the suspense account is only to be used for the purpose of meeting the 27" pay In a
financial year that ccours every 11 years,

Current

GST Receivabla 36,955 i

Accrued Revenue 140,563 -

Other 158,207 187,241
335,725 186,431

Prepayments

Current - -

Total Current 335,725 196,431

See note 3fn) and nole 29 "Financial instruments"

Current 143,000 106,000

Non-current 600,000 £59,000
743,000 765,000

Represenls the non-cash component of service appropriations. See nola 3(m) "Amounts Recelvable for
Services (Holding Account)’. It is restricted in ihat it can only be used for asset replacement or paymerit of
leave liability.
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20070875 0 00607
Builgings - L.easehold Improvements (WIP)
At cost K 494 263 -

Furniture and fitlings
At cost 614,362 21,780

Accumulaled depreciation G} (6407 1)
s 127,636 14,869
Compuler Hardware

At cost 78,248 78,248
Accumulated depreciation fan gy

22,831

Qffica equipment
At gost
Accumulated depreciation

Plant & machinery
Al cost
Accumulated depreciation

Communications
At cost
Accumulated depreciation [RERT AR

Cfice establishment
At cost -
Accumuiated deprecialion N SoMLES

- 195,842
Works of Art - -
Al cost “ -

Total

At cost 1,262,000
Accumulated depreciation {50 400

867,594 249,871

See next page for reconciliation
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Recenciliations
Reconciliztions of the carrying amounis of preperly, plant, equipment and vehicles at the heginning and end
of the current and previous financial year are set out below.

200708

Carrying amount st start

of year 14,859 2251 105,338 195,842 . . - 258N
Addilions - 11482 454,253 - B05745

Translers 180,982
Depraciation e

Carrying amaount at end
of year 127,63 11,616 20,646 . 494,253 13,373 - 87,504

14,880

Hulk

1

g IR [
Carrying amouni at starl

of year 1043 128 41,285 213872 - - 15968 32467
Darecognilion of assets
{change in accl. policy)

Additions 15,780 17,898 - 60,727 - . - 84,406
Depreciation A e T PR
Carrying amount al end

ol year 14,859 22,831 16,339 195,842 - - - 248,871

Computer Soflware

At cost 186,450 91,920

Accurnulated amorisation { 73 -
157,853 91,920

Reconciliations:

Computer Software

Carrying amount at start of year 91,920 -

Additions 94,530 91,920

Amoriisation expernse i -

Carrying amount at end of year 157,853 91,920

There were no indications of impairment of properly, plant and ecuipment and intangible assets &
30 June 2008, The Office held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinile usefu! life during the
repiorting period and at balance sheet date thare were no intangible assets not yet avallable for use, All
surplls assets at 36 June 2007 gave either been classified as assets held for sale or written-pif.
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T 2007-08% T 2006-07
Cusrent
Trade payables 240,434 380
Accrued Expenses 109,520 43,294
Accrued Salaries 24314 9,437
Other payables 2,551 “
' 376,819 53 111
The cérryi‘ng amourd of payables approximates their net fair values,
Current
Employee benefits provision
Annuat ieave™ 290,012 232,599
48152 Salary Purchasing - 1,258
Long service leave™ 345,498 332,456
635,510 566,310
Other provisions
Employment on-costs™ 2,943 2,624
2,943 2,624
638,453 568,934
MNan-current
Employee benefils provision
Long service leave™ 175,158 130,472
175,168 139,472
Other pravisions
Employment on-costs'® 822 653
822 553
175,980 140,128

(a)

Annual leave tiabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after balance sheet date.  Assessments indicate that actual
seltiement of the liabilities wili occur as follows:

Within 12 months of balance sheet date 169,997 232,599

More than 12 months afier balance

sheet date 120,015 -
290,012 232,500
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(b) Long service leave liabillies have been classified as current where there Is ne unconditiona! right to
defer selllement for at least 12 months after balance dale.  Assessmenis indicate that actual
setllement of the liabitilies will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of balance sheat date 241,898 332,456

More than 12 months afler balance

sheet date 298,758 139,472
520,656 471,928

{¢) The setliement of annual and long service leave fiabilitles gives rise to the payment of employment
on-costs including workers' compensalion insurance. The provision is the preseni value of expected -
future payments. The associated expense, apart from lhe unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is
included in note 11 'Other expanses’,

Mavement in Other Provisions

Employmient on-cost provision
Carrying amount at starl of year 3,325 3,325
Additional provisions recognised 488 ~

Paymentsiother sacrifices of economis beneflits (A -
Carrying amount al end of
year 3,765 3325

Equity represents the reskdual interest in the net assels of the Office. The Government hotds the equity
interest in the Offica on behalf of the community, The asset revaluation reserve represents that portion of
equily resulting from the ravaluation of non-current assets,

Contributed equity
Balance at the start of the year 732,000 732,000

Contributions by owners:
Capital Contributions™ - -
Transfer of net assets from other agencies™ - .
Toial contributions by owners - -

Distributions to owners;
Transfer of net assets lo other agencies™ - .
Net assels transferred to Government®
Totat distributions 1o owners - .

Balance at the end of the year 732,000 732,000
Transfer to Accumulaied surplus/{deficit) - -
Restated batance at the end of the year 732,000 732,000

(a)  Gapila! Conlributions (appropriations) and non-discrefionary (non-reciprocal) trangfers of nel assels
from other State government agencles have been designaled as contributions by owners in
Treasurer's Instruction Tt 855 'Contribution by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entilies’
and are credited directly to equily.
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(b} UIG Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Qwners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’
requires that where the fransferee accounts for a transfer as a condributions by owner, the transferor
must account for the transfer as a distribution to cwners. Consequerdly, non-diserefionary {non-
reciprocal) transfers of net assels to other State government agencies are distribution to owners and
are debited directly to equity,

{c) TI 955 requires non-reciprocal transfers of net assets to Government to be accounted for as
distribution o owners.

L none.a7
Reserves .

Asset ravaluation reserve

Balance at the start of the year .
Realised on asset disposal .

Balance at the end of tha year B "

The assel revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaiuation of non-
current assels.

Accumulated surplus
Balance at the start of the year 352,338 468,946
Restatement of apening balance due to change in accounting policy - (£ iy

352,338 403,162
Restatement of op bal due o correction of prior accounting period FS

erors - 1914
352,338 345,014
Realised portion of revaiuation reserve on assel disposal - 6,117
Resuit for the period 263,732 (A2 79m
Balance at the end of the year 606,070 352,338

Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

Reconcilialion of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled o the related
items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 584,419 526,160
Restricted cash and cash eguivalents (refer 1o note 15) 30,731 17,126
625,150 543,286

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating aclivities
Net cost of services [T T IR CE

Non-cash Hems:

Depreciation and amertisation expanse 116,619 141,207
Superannuation
expense 182,386 022,885

Resources received free of charge $3,120 75,088
Other Revenue 0,800

] -
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Eipeorogt

{Increasefdecrease in assels:
Prepayments -

Current receivables™

Increasef{decrease) in liabilities:

Accrued salaries - 730
Current Provisions 69,519 32,802
Current payables 323,708 i
Non-gurrent provisions 35,855

Net GST receipts/(payments 2,018
Change in GST in recelvalbes/payables™ o

Net cash provided byf{used in) operating activities

{a) Thig iz the nel GST paidireceived, i.e cash fransaction,
]

(e}

This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.

Note that the Austrafian Taxation Office {ATO) receivable/ayable in respect of
GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current
assets are not included in these items as they do nol form part of the reconciling
flemns.

The Office did not provide any rescurces to other agencies frea of charge.

Non-cancellable operating leases commitments
Commitments for motor vehicle lease payments gre payable as

follows:
Within 1 year 475,111 7,302
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,407,332 9,737

Later than & yaars - "
1,882,443 17,039

The non cancellable operaling leases represert the Office’s properly lease and feages on its molor vehides,
The property lease is non-canceliable lease with a four year 10 month term with a further cption o renew the
lease, Rent is payabla monthly. Contingent rent provisions within the lease agresment allow for the minimusm
lease payments o be reviewed and increased in line with movements in market rents,

The moter vehicle lease is 2 non-cancellable lease with a two year tlarm, with lease paymeants monibly. New

vehicle leases are negotiated al the end of this pariod, the number of vehicls leasas being subjest (o the
Departments operational needs,
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Other commitments
Other expenditure commitments for operational expenditura coniracted for at the balance sheet date but not
recognised as liabitities, are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 682 -

Later than 1 year and not later than & years - -
) 682 -

These commitments are all inclusive of GST.

There were no events occuning after the reporting date that impact on the financial statements,

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense as presented in the
financial statement titled 'Summary of Consolidated Fund Appropriatiens and Ingome Estimates’ are shown
below. Significant varialions are considered to be those greater than 10% or $373,000.

The following explanations are provided in accordanca with Treasurer's Instreclion 945;

(1) Significant variances between estimate and actual - Total appropriation to deliver services:

Total Appropriation
Total Appropriation 3,240,600 3,727,000

The variation relates lo an approved increase in appropriation during the year of $309,000 to cover
increased costs of accommadation arising from the lease renewal in 2007-08, $68,000 to caver the costs of
pay increases, superannuation and car allowances for positions coverad by the Salary and Allowance
Tribunai and $9000 for pay increases for CSA specified callings.

{ii) Significant variances between actual for 20068-07 and 2007-08 - Total appropriation to deliver
services:

Service Expenditure
Other Public Sector Organisations 4,212,437 4,734,794 {52

The variation relates primarily to a reduction in expenses for superannnuation defined benefit plans of
$740,499 {Note 7), increased expenses for leave liability of $117,558 (Note 7) and increased cost of
accommaodation of $199,998 (Note 10). The remaining variation is due to generat salary and cost ascalation.
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{a) Financhal Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Financial Instrurments held by the Office are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash
equivalents and receivables and payables. All of the Offices cash is held in the public bank account (nan-
interest bearing} apart from restricted cash held in o spacial purpose account. The Office has fimited
exposure to financial risks. The Office’s overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks
identified below,

Cradit risk

Credit risk arises when there is the poasibllity of the Office's receivables defaulting on their contractual
ubligations resulling in financial foss to the Office. The Office measures cradit Fisk on a fair value basis and
menitors risk an regular basis,

The maximum credit risk at balance sheet date In retation 1o each class of recognised financial assels is the
gross canying amount of those assets inclusive of any provisions for impairment, as shown in the table at
Note 26(c).

Credit risk assoclated with the Office’s financial assels is minimal because the main recelvable is the
amounts receivable for services (holding account). For receivablas olher than government, the Office trades
only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on a ongoing
basis wilh the result thal the Offices exposure to bad debts is minimal. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk. :

Provigion for impairment of financial assels is calculated based on pasi experience, and current and
expected changes in client eredit ratings. For financial assets that are either past due or impaired, refer to
Note 16 ‘Receivables’,

Ligguidity rist

The Office is exposed to liquidity risk through s trading in the normal course of business, Liquidity risk
artees when tha Office is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due,

The Office has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by
monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available 1o meet its commilments.

Market risk

The Office does not Irade in foreign currency and Is not materially exposed to other price risks. Other than
as delailed in the Interest rate sensitivily analysis table at Note 28(c), the Office is not axposad to interest
rate risk because all other cash and cash equivalents and restricied cash are non-interest bearing, and the
Office has no borrowings.

Poge 103



Disciosures and Legot Compliance

{b) Categories of Financial Instruments
In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities at the balance sheet date are as follows:

. Financial Assets. -

Cash and oash equivalents 504,419 526,160
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 30,731 17,126
Receivables™ " - 1,041,770 962,241
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 376,819 53,141

(&) Tha amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable fram the ATC {statulary recelvable).
{¢} Financial Instrument disclosures
Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and inferest Rate Risk Exposure.

The following lable details the exposure to liquidity risk and interest rale risk as at the balance shee! dale. The
Office's maximum exposure to cradit risk at the balance sheet date is the camrying amount of the financial
nasels as shown on the following table. The table is based on information provided to senior management of
the Office. The contraciual maturity amounts in the table are representative of the undiscounted amounts at
the balance sheet data. An adjustmen for discourding has been made where material.

The Office does nol hold any collaterat as securily or other credit enhancements relating to the financial
assets it holds,

The Office does not hald any financial assets that had 1o have their terms renegotiated that wouid have
atherwise resulted in them being past due or impaired.

2008

Financial

assels

Cash Assets - 594,419 - - " - - - - 594,419

Restricted

Cash Assets - 30,731 - - - . - - - 30,731

Receivables™ - 208,770 - - - - . - - 298,770

Amounts

receivahle Tor

Services - 743,000 - - - - - - - 743,000
- 1,666,920 - - - - - - - 1,666,920

Financial

Liabilities

Payablas " 376,819 - - - - . - - 376,819
~ 376,819 - « - - - - - 76,819
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“h0p7

Restricted

Cash Assels - 17,126 - - . - - « - 17126

Receivables™ - 197241 - . - . . - - 197,241

Amounts

receivable for

services - 7H5,000 - - - - - - - 765,000
- 1,506 627 - - - - - - - 1,508,527

Financial

Liabilities

Payables - 53111 - - - . - - - 53,111
- 53111 - - - - - - - 55,111

(@) The amounl of receivables excludes GST racoverable om he ATC {(statutory receivable).
Interesl rate sensitivify analysis

None of the Office’s financial asseis and liabilities at the balance sheet date are sensitive io movements in
interest rates, hence movements in interest rates have no boltom ling impact on the Office’s surplus or equity,

Fair Values

All financial assels and liabiliias recognised in the balance sheel, whether they are carried at cost or fair
vaiug, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise
stated in the applicable notes,

0607
” 7

Remuneration to the Auditor General for the financial year is estimated as follows:

Audiling the accounts, financhal statements and performance indicators 20,700 18,800
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Remuneration
The number of senior officers whose tolai of fees, salaries and other benefils received, or due and receivable,
for the financial year, who fall within the following bands is:

3
1,001 - 2,000 1 -
60,001 - 70,000 - 1
70,001 - 0,000 . -
80,00% - 90,000 1 -
$0,001 - 100,000 1 i
100,001 - 110,000 - 2
110,001 - 120,000 1 -
130,001 - 140,000 1 -
200,001 - 210,000 - 1
230,001 - 240,000 - 1
270,00% - 280,00¢ 1 -
330,00% - 340,000 1 “
The total remuneration of senior officers is: 1,035,782 821,827

The total remuneralion includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Office in respect of senior
officers, One senior officer is a member of the Pension Scheme.

Contingent Liabilities
The Office has no contingent liabilities.
Contingent Assets

The Office has no contingent assets.

The Office had no related bodies during the financial year.

The Office had no affiliated bodies during the financial year.
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The indian Ocean Terrftories Reimbursement Fund was established in March 1996 and became operational in
July 1996. The purpose of the Fund is to meet the cost of the services of the Office in relation to complainls

invelving the Indian Ocean Territories.

The balance of the Fund at the end of the firancial year is included in the Office’s Operating Account. The
figures presented below for the Fund have been prepared on a cash bagis.

Write-Offs

e bh0e -
Opening Balance 13,210 10,178
Recelpts - 9,351
Paymenis

Closing Balance 11,174 13,210

There was one write-off during the financial year, it related to a prior year salary overpayment of $7 388,

L.osses Through Theft, Defaults and Other Causes

Thare were no iosses of public morey and public and other property during the financtal year,

Gifts of public property

There were no gifls of public property provided by the Departrenst during the financial yaar,
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Ministerial Directlives

The Ombudsman'reports direcily to the Western Australian Parliament and is not under the control
of a minister. Ministers are not able to give directives relating to desired outcomes or operational
objectives.

Other ?Enmncia% Disclosures

Pricing Policies of Services Provided

The Ombudsman's ¢ffice currently receives revenue for the following functions:

Costs for the Energy Ombudsman functions are recouped from Energy Industry Ombudsman
(Western Australia) Limited on the basis of full cost recaovery, These costs are delermined by
the actuat slaffing costs involved in delivering the service plus an allowance for overheads and
the direct recovery of capital expenditure and particular operational expenses, such as
interstate travel.

Under an agreement with the Commonwealth, the Ombudsman’s office handles enquiries and
complaints from the Indian Qcean Territories about local governmenis and Western Australian
Government agencies delivering services to the Territories. Each year the office recoups costs
fram the Commonweaith for any complainis received from these Territories. Cost rgcovery is
baged on the average cost per complaint handied by the office over the last two years based
on the cost per complaint published in the office’s Annual Reports. The costs of any travel fo
the Territories by the Ombudsman or staff and any promotional materials are also recoupad in
fulk.

The Ombudsman's office is a partnier with the Commonwealth Ombudsman and the New South
Wales Ombudsman in an AusAlD funded program in Indonesia (funded under the AusAID
Government Partnership Fund), the principal goal of which is {o provide greater access, across
a larger portion of Indonesia, to more effective and sustainable Ombudsman and other
complaint management services. The Ombudsman's office recoups costs for these aclivities
from the Commonwealth Ombudsman's office in accordance with the Australia Indenesia
Rartnership for Reconstruction and Development Gavernment Parltnership Fund Guidelines.

Capital Works

In 2007-08, the Ombudsman's office continued with the project to the replace the case
management system that tracks complaints handled by the office. The system will be used to
record all enguiries and complainis received by the State Ombudsman and the Energy
Ombudsman and to provide statistics for intermal management and stakeholders. A tender
process was undertaken by the Depariment of Treasury and Finance and a capital project was
appraved. The project provided for funding for the initial setup of the system of $260,000 in 2006-
07 with additional funds of 528,000 per year for software licences in the naxt three years.
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There were two phases for the setup of the system:
Phase 1 Establish the system for Energy Ombudsman complainis.

Phase 2: Establish the sysiem for general compigints handled under the Pariamentary
Commissioner Act (1971).

Phase 1 was largely compleled in 2006-07 at a cost of $91,920. Phase 2 was compleled on 30
June 2G0B. Progress payments of $95,430 were made during 2007-08. The remaining payments
totalling $55,620 will be made in 2008-08 as they were subject {o the successful implementation of
the system. The total cost of the new system was $150,150,

In January 2007 the independent review of the former Depariment for Community Developmernt,
undertaken by Prudence Ford recommended that the chitd death review function be transferred
frem the ministerfal Child Death Review Commiltee to the Ombudsman and that a small
investigations unil be established.

It was recognised that additional office space would be reguired to accommodate staff {or this
additional funclion. When an opporlunity arose 1o cbtain additional space in the current buiiding in
July 2007, the Ombudsman obtained approval for the cost of the additional lease and for fitout
cosis. The Information Commissioner, who is collocated with the Gmbudsman, alse had a fitout
scheduled. As the proposed new arrangements required the Information Commissioner and his
staff to move 1o another location within (Re building, the fit-out for both agencies was undertaken
concurrently and was managed by the Ombudsman’s office. The budgeted folal cost of the fitout
far both organisations was $405,000 including $205,000 for the Infermation Commissioner’s office
and $200,000 for the Ombudsman’s office. Funding was obtained from an approved additional
drawdown of $297,000 and a carryover of $108,000 for the fitout for the Information Commissioner.

The fitout was completed in 2007-08 at a cost of $428,000,

Employment and industrial Relations

The Ombudsman's office has grown steadily over the pas{ 3 years. Over the full year for 2007-C8
there were 31 FTEs, and as at 30 June 2008 there were 38 employees including 32 full time
employees and G part time employees, This includes people on unpaid leave and conlract staff
empioyed to provide shorl term experlise and backfill staff during long periods of leave, such as
maternily leave. All employees are public seclor employees operating in executive, policy, enquiry,
investigation and clerical roles.

Table 14 provides a breakdown of the categories of employment for staff as at 30 Juna 2008,
compared to the same time in 2006-07.
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- Table 14~ Number of Slaff as at 30 June - .

ooy ooy

Cfultmepermanent 24 T
Full-ime contrac.t- - 5 2 2
Part-time ;iefmériéﬁ( ' o 5 7 (4.4 FTES) s (32 FTES)

_ Part-time c.ontra.ct ' 0 1 (0.2 FTEs) . 1{0.8 FTES)

: TQTAL 34 36 {326 FTEs) 38 (3G FTEs)
Employeaes seconded out {included Not Available 2 0

in nurnhers above)

Employees seconded in {not Not Available 4 (3.8 FTEs) 2{1.5 FTEs)
included in numbers above)}

MET TOTAL Hot Available 38(31.4 FTEs) A0 {375 FTEs)

{a} Siaff Policies and Frocedures, Including Recruliment and Salf
Development

The Ombudsman's office has policies in place 10 cover a range of human resource management
practices.  All HR related polices are developed in consultation with a Joint Consultative
Commitiee for the purpose of selling a framewark for the interpretation of awards, agreements and
legislative requirements, A comprehensive review of several policies was undertaken during the
2007-08 year, incluging a recreational leave policy to ensure employees take sufficient teave to
maintain their health and productivity and to schedule leave planning around workload
commitments, There will be a parlicular emphasis on the development of a training and
development plan and induction program during the 2008-09 year.

Flexible work options, part-time and job-sharing arrangements are widely accepted as part of a
family friendly approach to the work environment. Advertisements for all positions in the office
include information that flexibie work arrangements, including part-time employment, may be
negotiated. Many staff take up these flexible work options, and staff in ail areas and at all levels
have access to, and use, par-time or purchased leave arrangements. Opporiunities are also
availabie for staff to work from home.

The office recognises the importance of a diverse workforce in providing services to the diverse
Waestern Australian community. The office has slrategies in place fo increase the diversity of the

Page 114



Biselosyres and Legael Compliance

workforce and ensure equilable treatment of staff and clienis. In addition, the office has policies on
equat opportunity and harassment, and will not tolerate any form of direct or indirect discrimination.

The office’'s EEQ management planning and practices take into account the principles and
objectives of the Government's Equity and Diversity Plan for the Public Sector Workforce 2006
2009. The office is well represented by People with Disabilities, Youth and Women in Management
and women coniinue 1o be well represented across all levels.,

The office has a small staff and as such, changes in staffing, such as turnover of only one or two
paople, have a gignificant effect on levels of representation. It is therefore not practical to set
specific objectives for representation. However, the office idaniified areas where it will be working
to achieve increased representation and has identified key opportunities to achieve lhese
abjectives and other equal employment opporiunity sutcomes,

The opperiunities identified for the year ahead are to:

o review and updale the office’s induction manual and procedures to include ways to cover
requirements for a workplace that values diversity and is free of discriminalion, harassment
and victimisation; :

s frainfretrain stalf who are involved in selection processes:
o review current policies and procedures as an ongoing matter; and

s explore the possibility of appointing an Indigenous person 1o undertake laison with Indigenous
people to improve their access o making complaints to the Ombudsman.

There is a strong focus on merit and equity in alt recruitment and selection processes, whether the
procass is to fill a permanent pasition or short term secondment or acling vacancy. All job
advertisements encourage people from diverse backgrounds o apply and fo provide for
negotistion of flexible work arrangements. The office’s recruitment and selection practices are
designed lo meet the requirement of the public sector standards in human resouree management
and anable both organisational requiremeants and employee interests o be met.

A consistent performance management process is used across the office and a monitoring system
ensures all employees have parformance management in place.

The office I commitied 1o creating a work environment free from alt forms of discrimination and
harassment and o resolving grievances promplly.  Grievance management and harasgment
policies are available to all staff at induction and through the office intranet. In 2007-08 there were
no formal internat grievances.

The Ombudsman‘s office has a public interest disclosure policy and strongly supports disclosures
being made by staff. The Ombudsman will take all reasaonable steps o pravide protection to staff
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who make such disclosures from any detrimental action in reprisal for the making of a public
interest désclosUre_. The office provides guidetines to staff wishing to make such disclosures. In
2007-08 there were no public interest disclosures about the activities of the Ombudsman's office,

{Bb} Indusirial %’_g!@?i{ms

Staff in the Omb’udsman‘s office are employed under the Government Officers’ Salaries,
Allowances and Conditions General Agreement 2006 and the Government Officers' Salaries,
Allowances and Conditions Award 1889. No industrial disputes were recorded during the year.

Governance Disclosures

‘Governancs Distlosurass

Disclosures in 2007-08 -

" This i ot relevant as the Ombudsman's office Is not a statutory authoriiy and does

riot have shares.

This is nol relevant as the Ombudsman's office does not have any subsidiary
badies.

The office’s Code of Conduct defines conflict of Interest and appropriate action o
take where a conflict arises between the employee's public duty and their private
interests, including during tender and purchasing processes.

Employees are aware through the Cede of Cenduct that they have an obligation te
disclose inferests that could reasonably create a perception of bias, ar an actual
conflict of interest, and members of Corporate Executive are asked 1o declare any
interesis at each Corporate Execulive mesting.

in addition, senior staff are aware of the Conflict of Interest guidelines developed by
the Integrity Coordinaling Group, of which the Weaslern Australian Ombudsman is a
member.

The office’s policy on identifying and addressing conflict of interest includes any
interest of:

(a) a senior officer; or

(b} a frm of which a senior officer is a member; or

(c) an entity in which the senior officer has a substantial financial interest
in any existing or proposed contracl made with 1he Ombudsman's office.

There have been no declaralions of an interest in any existing or propesed contracts
by senior officers in 2007-08,

This is not applicable as no senior officers have received any benefits,

This Is not applicable as the Ombudsman's oflice does not have any directors as
defined in Part 3 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors} Act 1996,
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Other Legal Requirements

Adveriising and Sponsorship Expenditure [Blectoral Ach)

The office has nol engaged any companies or organisations relating to advertising, market
research, polling, direct mail or media adveriising that require disclosure under §.1752E of the
Electoral Aot 1907.

Dizability Access and Inclusion Plon Culcomes

The office is commilled 1o providing optimum access and service lo people with disabilities, their
families and carers. The Ombudsman's Disability Access and inclusion Plan includes the following

iniliatives,

Table 15 - Disal

People with dizabilities have
the same opportunities as
gther people lo access the
services of, and any events

organiged
authority

by, a public

People with disabilities have

the same opporlunities as
other people 1o access the
huildings and other facilflies of
a public authority

People with disabilities recsive
information  from  a  public
authorily in a format that will
enable them o access the
information as readily as olher
people are able lo access it

Peopie with disabilities receive

the same level and quality of

service from the stafl of a

public  authority as  other

people receive from the staff of
* that public authority

ity ACBES B i

Any member of the public or staff with a disabiiily has an equal
opportunity e participale in consultations, decislon making, evenis
organised by the office, grievance processes, complaint handling and
other gervices provided by the office.  For svenls and meelings
organised by the office, venues are assessed for suileble access for
people with disabiliies and, where necessary, stafl will meet with
complainants outside the office to provide them with appropriate access
to the complaints process.

A access audit underlsken during the 2007-08 year has highlighied
areas for access improvements for people with digabililies. The office
will uadergo 2 new accommodation fit-out during 2008-08. The
Disability Services Commission guidelines on access have been used in
the design of the new offices and facilities.

The office strives io publish alf documents In plain English. Publications
are available in aliernative formats on request and this information is
provided in all pew publications.  Information published on the office
website can be viewed and printed in alternative formats and TTY
phone access is avalable for people with & hearing impairment, In
additiors, the office has provided suilalde equipment to enable
amployees with vision impairments o access eleclronic information.

The services provided by the office have been adapted to reduce
harrlers i people with disabilities through belter access and the
availability of information in various formats on request. This has helped
1o raize the awareness of staff in relation to their obligations in dealing
with people with disabilities.
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ia;""'-_ i

~Table 15 Disabillly Access ard inclision P

Action

Pecple with disabilities have A key role of the Ombudsman's office is to handle complaints about the
the same opporlunities as  public authorities. Any member of the public with a disability has an
olher people -~ to  make equal opporlunity o make a complaint to the office. Al complaints are
complaints to a public authority  investigated free of any bias or discrimination in order to achieve
: appropriate oulcomes quickly and efficlently. Where necessary, the
complaint process is modified {0 meet the needs of a person with a
disability, This includes meeting with peopie at a tocal venue where it is
difficult for them to atlend the office, and modifying communication

strategies, for example by using a translator where reguired,

People wih disabilities have  Any member of the public or slaff with a disabilily has an equal
the same opporluniies as  opporunity to participate in consultations, decision making, grievance
other people 1o participate in  process and any other consullative process within the office.  Most
any public consultation by a  consultation with the office is handled through the website or other

public authority electronic means. The office website meels disablity access
requirements and documents can be viewed and printed in alternative
formats,

Complionce with Public Sector Standards and Ethicol Codes

As an accountahility agency, the Ombudsman's office has a strong commitment to promoting
integrity in official conduct and the Ombudsman is a member of the Integrity Coordinating Group.
The office aspires to lead by example and is committed to achieving high standards in monitoring
and ensuring compliance with the Public Sector Standards, the Wesfern Australian Public Sector
Corls of Ethics and the office's Code of Conduct.

Table 16 identifies the significant action taken to monilor and ensure compliance and any
compliance issues that have arisen in 2007-08 in each of these areas.

ltor and Ensure Compiianée

The Cade of Ethics is available on the intranet ang as part of the induction of new staff. Awareness has
been promoted by senior staff attending a number of forums refating to ethical conduct.

Compliance issues: There has been no evidence of non-compliance with the Public Sector Code of
Ethics.
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Table 46 - Sigrificant Action 1o Moriler and Endure Comnplis

Managers and siaff are reguired 1o comply wilth the Public Sector Standards in Muman Resource
Managerant, Examples of monitoring provisions include:

« for recruitment, selection and appointment, an individual review of each process s undertaken prior o
e finat decision to ensure compliance with the Recruiiment Selection and Appointment Standard;

« @ review process ks in place o ensure that, for acting and secendment positions, a meril-based
process is used and there are no inadvertent extensions that resuil in fong-term opportunities without
expressions of interest; and

« @ monitoring process is n place to ensure there are current perfermance management processes in
place for all employeas.

Compliance issues:
«  Internal ehecks have shown compliance with the standards is achieved before any final decision.

o No breach clalms were lodged,

The Code of Conduct includes a core value statement that identifies and defines the kay values of jusiice,
eguily, efficiency and effectiveness,

The Code of Conduct also addresses a range of issues including dealing with clients, harassment and
discrimination, conflict of inferest, fraud, intelleclual propertly, confidentiality, public comment by staff, and
grievances and allegations against officers. it has a particular emphasis on idenlifying and addressing
cofiicts of interest between public duty and private bensfits, It also refers to key policies relating to
handiing of grievances and allegalions against staff and internal review of operational decisions.

Based on the standards included in the Public Sector Code of Ethics, the office Code of Conduct is an
integral part of the standards of behaviour adhered to by employees. Itis available 1o all staff on the office
itranet and is part of the induction of all new staff.

The Code Is regularly reviewed along with the policies o which it refers,

Compliance iszues! No evidence of non-compliance with the office’s Code of Conduet.

Recordkeeping Pluns

The Ombudsman's office s commilted to continuously improving recordkeeping praclices
consistent with the State Records Act 2000 and aims for best practice recordkeeping praclices.
The current office Recordkeeping Plan (tha pian), was approved by the State Records Commission
for the maximum period of five years in December 2004 and an elecironic documeanl records
managament system was implemented in 2005,

During 2007-08 the office’s recardkeeping processes continued to underge reviews to demonstrate
compliance with the Plan and a commitment lo efficient recordkeeping practices. A review of the
office’s Records Management Policy will be completed in 2008-08,
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The Records File Classification Plan for record-naming conventions was updated to reflect current
business functions, the transition to Office of Shared Services and other administrative changes.
The major review of all Retention and Disposal Schedules for files in all core business function
areas is continuing, with the completion of the Retention and Disposal Schedule for Complaint and
Own Motion Investigation Files.

The office also continues to maintain an offsite storage facility for the storage of all “significant”
complaints files and' all other relevant fites for the duration of their retention. A regular disposal
pregram targeting: division-specific records is undertaken to ensure ongoing on-site slorage
capacity. .

All in_cominé.'o.ulgoing and significant internal decuments are being saved electronically into the
electronic document records management system. This complements the saving of electronic mail
" temail} and facsimiles direcily into the ‘TRIM’ electronic document records management system,

All staff are required to save their final electronic decuments into the elecironic document records
management system and a training fite is presented to new stafl containing relevant procedural
manuais and documents {o assist in compliance with record keaping requirements. Information and
advice received from the State Records Office was forwarded to al! staff clarifying the classification
and retention requirements of email correspondence.

Administration staff in the operations area have received further training to assist them to
determine appropriate files for correspondence and consistent naming conventions for new files
requested.

The current processes are operating effectively and are regularly reviewed. This year the focus has
bean on mainiaining the efficiency of record handling for incoming mail in the event of changes ta
staffing and new Reception staff members have received extensive training in the use of TRIM.
The latest version of TRIM is to be installed early in the 2008-08 year. Ali staff members have
received information and advice on classification and storage of emails as per advice from the
State Records Office.

All new staff receive a recordkeeping induclion and alectronic document records management
system training session. Follow-up training and help desk assistance is also provided.
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Govemment Policy Requiremenis

Corruption Prevention

The Ombudsman's office is committed to operating with a high level of integrity, consistent with is
role in promoting confidence in public administration.

The Ombudsman's office Code of Conduct has a strong emphasis on identifying, managing and
preventing misconduct and corruption. This includes detailed definitions and procedures for:

» conflict of interest - this includes information on improper conduct for personal benefit, such as
officers taking advantage of stalus or power to gain benefits for themselves:

o gilts - this includes how gifis to the office should be handled and registered;
s fraud - this includes information on fraud prevention; and

o confidentiglity -~ this includes the requirement that slaff take an ocath or affirmation on
confidentiality,

There is an internal policy and procedures for Public Interest Disclosures, which was impiemented
in 2005.

The office ihvestigates complaints about public administration and handles Public interest
Disclosures relating to other agencies, which also raises awareness of these issues.

The high profile of these issues in the work of the office and the office’s membership of the Integrity
Coordinating Group and regular discussion on these matters, ensures staff are aware of:

« the integrily framework for the office, including the office’s vaiues, Code of Ethics, the office’s
Code of Conduct and internal Public Inferest Disclosure procedures;

+ internal notification procedures for dealing with complaints relating o misconduct and
corruption, including the ability to raise malters as a Public Interast Disclosure: and

« those aclivilies that constilute misconduet and corruption and the requirement to refer these
matters to the Corruption and Crime Commission,

Al staff, particularly those handiing complaints and Public Inferest Disclosures, are aware that
matiers may come to their altention from the rest of the sector thal relate to misconduet and
corruption. They are well informed about requiraments to report these mallers to the Corruption
and Crime Commission, This mainlains awareness of the nature of misconduct and corruption and
reporting requiremants for any of these matters that arise within the office.

Pfevention of misconduct and corruplion is supported by:
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» a strong focus on integrity and conflict of interest issues in the Code of Conduct and a
raguirement tq declare and address conflicls of interest; and

» internal checks émd balances including quality checks and sign off of major decisions, such as
recruitment and major purchases in accardance with the office’s Instrument of Delegation for
Chief Executive Officer functions.

Staff are awa'ré of the revised Code of Ethics developed by the Commissioner for Public Sector
Standards. The office adopts a continuous improvement approach to its Code of Conduct,
including the conflict of interest provisions. Information about these documents is provided to new
" staff and is available on the office’s intranat. Ethical awareness is reinforced through attendance
' ljy staff at presentations by guest speakers and relevant seminars and workshops. Senior staff are
asked 1o declare any conflicts of interest at the commencement of management meetings and
manihly staff meetings focus on and reinforce the application of the office’s values.

Given the role of the office, the need to maintain its reputation by preventing missonduct and
carruption is an imporiant aspect of the office’s risk management. Policies are regularly reviewed
with a focus on integrity issues. In addition, any identification of a praclice that may result in a risk
of misconduct or corruption results in a review of relevant policies and practices to prevent it
oceurring.,

Informalion security is a high priority for the office. The office also has an Informations Security
Policy and relevant risks and control strategies have been identified and implemented. The office’s
hard copy and electronic records management system and information technology networks have
restricted access to sensitive racords. Highly sensitive records are kept in independent lockable
storage and are only accessible o relevant staff. Staff are made aware of their obligations refating
to information security as part of the induction process and make an oath or affirmation that they
will not inappropriately disclose information from the office’s confidential records. The office has an
Internet Usage Policy that informs staff about their responsibilities in using the internet.

Substantive Equalily

The Ombudsman's office does nof currently have obligations under the Substantive Equalily
Framework as it is net a member of the Strategic Management Council. However, the office is
commilled lo the objectives of the policy 1o eliminate systemic racial discrimination in the delivery
of public services and promote sensitivity to the different needs of client groups.

The office’'s EEQ/Diversily Management Plan 2007-2009 includes iniiatives designed to elminate
syslemic racial discrimination in the delivery of services, as well as pramoating equal employment
opporlunity. The Ombudsman's office understands that cullural diversity in the wozkforce
contributes 1o increased sensitivity by all staff to the different needs of client groups, '
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Planned initiatives to address both employment opportunity and improved services to customers
include a review of the induction manual and procedures to include ways to cover requirements for
a workplace that values diversity and is free of discrimination, harassment and victimisation, Siaff
invalved in selection processes will be trained or retrained to raise awareness of how selection
processes can be improved lo meet the needs of people fram EEC groups.

The office understands the importance of appropriate service delivery far people from diverse
backgrounds, To ensure thal services provided by the Ombudsman's office are as accessible as
possible, alf publications are available in alternative formals on request. Information published on
the office website can be viewed and printed in alternative formats and TTY phone access is
available for people with hearing impairment. The office also provides inferpreter services to
people who do not speak Engilish.

The Child Dealh Review function will be transferred to the Ombudsman pending legislative
changes, An approvad budget for the function includes funding for an Indigenous person,

Sustainubiiily

Under the Sustainability Code of Fractice for Government Agencies, departments of State and
Seniar Execulive Service organisations are required {o develop a Sustainability Action Plan. While
it is not intended that the code apply to accountability agencies such as the Ombudsman’s office,
the office is committed to the principles in the Code of Practice and to ensuring agency operations
support sustainability and encourage and empower staff to support it.

The Ombudsman’s office is one of the top len agencies for energy reduction: with a saving of over
30 per cent from baseline data, as reported in the Energy Srmart Government 2066/07 publication
produced by the Sustainable Energy Development Office.

The Ombudsman’'s office is collocated with the Office of the Public Sector Blandards
Commissioner, Energy efficient initiatives include:

o the attendance of all staff at awareness sessions whare energy saving was promoted by the
Ombudsmary,

s motion sensors to control light circults in offlices, kitchens and meeting rooms;
« placement of Energy Smart stickers on ail computer moniters and near light switches; and

« maintenance of master light switches on each floor, allowing the {ast staff member to urn off ail
lights hefore leaving.
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CTable 175 _éédé'_ of Practicé Aclions and Slrateqies

Sgré'tegi_éé

Planning, reporting and « Strategic and business planning is consistert with sustainability
. decision making are principles and actions in Betler Planning: Beller Services,
- eondueted in accordance with
¢ sustainability principles

Agency operatiéns support  «  Pracurement complies wilh the sustainability approach as outlined
suslainability - - in the State Supply Commission's poticies.

» Service delivery is integrated with other accountability agencies
through co-location arrangements and sharad business services,

« The office maximises paper resycling through use of recycle bins,

» The office is highly constious of energy consumplion and has
successfully reduced energy consumption over several years.

» Travel and vehicle use are minimised through use of telephones
and teleconference facilities where possible.

« Sustainability considerations have been built onie office fit-outs,
inchiding use of lights that turn off when offices are emply and
planned switching for separate switching for individual offices.

Public sector employees are © « Paper recycling and minimising use of energy were initiatly
encouraged and empowered promoted personaily by the Ombudsman and have been maintained
to support sustainability through signs on recycling bins and light switches

A representative from the Ombudsman's office attended the Water Carporation's Waler Efficiency
Measures fro Government Agencies Briefing Session in March 2008 and the Water Challenger
Software Training Sessicn in May 2008. Development of a Water Efficiency Management Plan,
detailing the initiatives that the office will take to improve water efficiency and increase staff
awareness, is ongoing.

OCecupalional Safety and Health

The office is committed to providing a safe and healthy work environmant for all staff and visitors o
the office. Training in emergency pracedures, including building evacuation and first aid is
regularly undertaken. The office regularly updates emergency contact information posters that
include information from other collocated agencies. A first aid kit is available and first aid officers
have been appainted and trained in the application of first aid techniques.

All staff have the opportunity to have their workstation assessed where required and assessments
are undertaken of the home work environment for work from home arrangements.

The Joint Consultative Committee has worked on developing an injury managemeni systerm in
accordance with the requirements of the Workers' Compensation and Injury Management Act
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Disclosures ond Legal Compliance

1681, The office's injury management system details steps to take when a workplace injury
occurs. The system ensures that injury management intervention cccurs quickly ard properly, so
that injured workers can remain at work or return to wark at the earliest appropriate time.

An employee assistance program provider is available to sta# and their immediate family, to
access confidential counselling services, i required,

There was one compensation claim processed during the year.

The Ombudsman's office Occupational Health and Safely Statistics for 2007-08 are shown in
Tabie 18,

falistes

“Table e Q_z_:c'iuﬁés_iqhzﬂ_ Héajii} ardl ._,‘Sa_f:ab'g

H0T08

Number of fatallies 0 0
Lost time injury/diseases (LTYD) incidence rale 0 o]
Lost time injury severity rate 0 0

Foge 121



Appendices
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* Allegations finalised in 2007-08 may include allegations which were received in earlier financial years.
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* Allegations finalised in 2007-08 may include allegations which were received in earlier financiat vears.
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The following publications are available electronically on the Ombudsman's website at

www.ombudsman.wa.gov.au and in hard copy by request to mail@ombudsman.wa.gov.au:

Brochures

Ombudsman Western Australia

Guidellnes and Foot Sheels

Being interviewad by the Gmbudsman

How we assass your complaint

Agsessmenl checklist

Requesting the review of a decision

Making & complaint to a State Government agency
Procedural fairness

Good record keeping

Dealing with unreasonable complainants

Overview of the complaint invastigation process
Investigation of complaints

Guidelines for conducting administralive investigations
The Ombudsman's redress guidelines

Information for koards and tribunzls
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